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- For the year ended 31 March 2017 B2 =% —+ 4
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2017 2016
—E—+tF AN
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FHET
Proceeds from disposals of financial assets = HE&EEAFEFALEES

at fair value through profit or loss REZHBEEZBRE 70,922 40,522
Revenue WA 600 602

Loss for the year attributable to owners of ZEATEEAEGEEREEERE
the Company (14,707) (23,974)
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Net asset value per share BREEFE HK$0.0297# 5t  HK$0.032/# 7T
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of China Investment
Development Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries are engaged in investment
holding for medium to long-term capital appreciation purposes,
and investment in listed and unlisted securities. There have been no
significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities
during the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 58 of the annual report. The

directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business Review and Future Prospect

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are
provided in the Management Discussion and Analysis section on

pages 17 to 23 of this Annual Report.

Financial Key Performance Indicators

An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section on pages 17 to 23 of this Annual

Report.

Important Events after the Year-end Date
No important events affecting the Group have occurred since the
end of the financial year ended 31 March 2017.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group's principal business activities are exposed to a
variety of key risks including credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity
risk, operational risk and market risk. Details of the aforesaid
key risks and risk mitigation measures are set out in “Financial
Risk Management Objectives and Policies” in note 30 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Environmental Policy and Performance

We are committed to protect the environment by introducing a
green policy to enhance the awareness of environmental protection
among staff. The Group has implemented internal recycling
programme for office consumables such as toner cartridges and
paper to help protect the environment and natural resources.

The Group has also implemented energy saving practices in offices
and branch premises where applicable, such as taking initiatives to
reduce paper usage by encouraging the use of websites and online
version of corporate communications. As regards reduction of
power consumption, lighting, air-conditioners and office equipment

will be turned off when not in use.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements. The Group has been allocating resources
to ensure the Group's ongoing compliance with the updated
applicable rules and regulations. During the year under review,
the Group has complied, to the best of our knowledge, with the
Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Companies Law, Company Law of
Bermuda, the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and other relevant rules and regulations.

Relationships with key stakeholders
The Group's success lies also on the support from key stakeholders,

including shareholders, employees, bankers, and service providers.

Shareholders

One of the corporate goals of the Group is to enhance corporate
value to our shareholders. Description of the shareholders’
rights and our investor relations can be found in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 24 to 35 of this Annual Report.

Employees

The Group treasures our employees as the most important assets
of the Group. The objective of the Group's human resources
management is to reward and recognise our employees by
providing a competitive remuneration package, appropriate
incentives such as share options and bonus, and opportunities
within the Group for career advancement.

6 Annual Report 43k 2017
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Relationships with key stakeholders (continued)

Bankers

The Group has maintained excellent relationship with our bankers
and has been soliciting funds from our bankers as and when

necessary.

Service Providers

The Group's good relationships with its key service providers are
important in our provision of effective and efficient services as well
as meeting business challenges and regulatory requirements. The
key service providers provide professional services to the Group
which are key to our success.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during the

year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the authorised and issued share capital of the Company

are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 61 to 62 and in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2017, in the opinion of the Directors, the Company
had no reserves available for distribution to shareholders (2016:
HKS$Nil).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As the Group is engaged in investment holding for medium to
long-term capital appreciation purposes, and investment in listed
and unlisted securities, there are no major customers and suppliers
during the year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 144. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial

statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee
Mr. Zhang Xuming

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Chen Yin

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix
Mr. Leung Wing Kin
Mr. Leung Chi Kong

In accordance with Bye-law 153, Mr. Chen Yin and Mr. Fong

Wo, Felix will retire at the AGM and both being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election thereat.

8 Annual Report % 2017
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 47 to 50 of the
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions held by
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, the "SFO") as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“"Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
were as follows:

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

. . 1

EERERERERE

ARREERAKERREREZREHNFHRE
47E508 °

EERFETRAESRKRMD HBERORE
R 2

RIZ—tF=ZA=+—RB EFREARALIBTR
ABRARR REAEER (&R ESFRAE RS
(B RHIEGRD]) EXVER) 2 B fn - AR &
REPHE B ARRRIRIERRE 5 & E 15155352
GEAGE BECMZERARRRE IREFTEBS
RBAARAR ([BRFF])EHFEMARR ([ LR
A MMM LM BETAEFETEFRZINT
ETA (BREFR D EARTHMEARRRBRMZ
Mok RIT

EARRORERRG ZHFE

Number of shares/underlying shares held

FEsRG HEROHE
Number
of shares
Capacity in issuable Approximate
Name of Director/ which interests Number of on Share Total percentage of
chief executive are held shares held options held interests  shareholding
FR¥EER IR
Z A BT 1B
Ex FETHRABHE BHEERZZSD FERHEE R EE AR BMAOBSE
(Note 2) (Note 1)
(Htat2) (KBtaE1)
Mr. Chen Yin (hote 3) Interests of controlled  1,091,880,000 - 1,091,880,000 12.38%
BRIALSE & (B7aE3) corporation
RESIARZER
Beneficial owner 27,300,000 27,300,000 0.31%
ERBEREA
Mr. Zhang Xuming (note 4) Interests of controlled 722,640,000 - 722,640,000 8.19%
corporation
SRIBERSE A& (Hata) RGN R R
Beneficial owner - 81,100,000 81,100,000 0.92%

BEmEBA
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS

IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the

Company (continued)

ESRFETRAESRRKRSG HBERORE
REE 2R (A

EATRORERARGD TR (&

Number of shares/underlying shares held

ARG HEROHE
Number
of shares
Capacity in issuable Approximate
Name of Director/ which interests Number of on Share Total percentage of
chief executive are held shares held options held interests  shareholding
FREEE IR
Z A BT IR
BEx TETRASHE BEEZZ5H RO E RHBE BrER BMOBSH
(Note 2) (Note 1)
(Htatz) (KBiaE1)
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee Beneficial owner - 81,100,000 81,100,000 0.92%
REZEEE ERBERA
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix Beneficial owner - 30,000,000 30,000,000 0.34%
7S & EREAA
Mr. Leung Wing Kin Beneficial owner - 10,000,000 10,000,000 0.11%
3 e S v EmEAA
Mr. Leung Chi Kong Beneficial owner - 20,000,000 20,000,000 0.23%
ZEMm k4 EREEA
Notes: (T

1.

10

The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of the
Company's issued share capital of 8,821,857,294 shares as at 31 March
2017.

The relevant interests are share options granted pursuant to the
Company’s share option scheme adopted on 9 April 2009 (the
“Scheme”). Upon exercise of the share options in accordance with
the Scheme, ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each in the share capital
of the Company are issuable. The share options are personal to the
respective Directors and the holders thereof are entitled to subscribe
for shares of the Company.

Mr. Chen Yin is deemed to have interest in 1,091,880,000 shares in the
Company held by Micah Holdings Limited, a private company wholly-
owned by Ms. Ji Jie, the spouse of Mr. Chen.

The 722,640,000 shares are held by Salus Investments Limited, a
company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Zhang Xuming.

Annual Report 43k 2017
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (continued)

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the
Company (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The detailed disclosures relating to the Company's share option
scheme and valuation of options are set out in note 23 to the

consolidated financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2017, the following persons, other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company, were interested or had short
positions in more than 5% of the shares and underlying shares of

the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO:

EERFETRAESRKRMD HBERORE
REE 2R (F)

FARRGORERRG 2FRE (&)

BREXHBEEN R_ZT—LF=-A=+—H &=F
HARAEBITHA B BN AR B e H A ] 5
EE (EERBEFLBEGRGIEXVER) 2 Ity - 18R
etk ERED EEELCARRAREBEES NS
GPISEIS2FAFE 2 B CMABRIBRETRE B17T
HMERRA LBz ETORR

B E
BRARRBRAEN B RBREGE FARES
BN A BB RERM 23 -

FERR

REF—tF=ZA=t+—B B —RESFHARFE
BITHABIN RIRIEE 7 R E R0 F 33616 EF
BEZERMATRE 58 AR BN RAARER7D5%
A L#sSXRR Z ATIAT

Approximate

Capacity in which Number of percentage of
Name of Shareholder Interests are held shares held shareholding
BRES BB BEREzZEH FIEROEE HRESANEIL
(Note 2) (Note 1)
(Kiz22) (Hiaz1)
Micah Holdings Limited (note 2) Beneficial owner 1,091,880,000 12.38%
Micah Holdings Limited (#77#2) EnHBA
Ji Jie Interests of controlled corporation 1,091,880,000 12.38%
S 4 Sk | NG o
Salus Investments Limited (hote 3) Beneficial owner 722,640,000 8.19%

Salus Investments Limited (#7523) EmEE A
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes:

1. The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of the
Company's issued share capital of 8,821,857,294 shares as at 31 March
2017.

2. Micah Holdings Limited, a private limited company incorporated in

the British Virgin Islands, and wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Ji
Jie, the spouse of Mr. Chen Yin, Chairman and Non-executive Director
of the Company.

3. Salus Investments Limited, a private limited company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, and wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Zhang Xuming, the chief executive officer and an executive director of
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, the Company was
not notified of any persons, other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, having any interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and chief
executive's interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures”
above, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or of any other body corporate granted to any Directors or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors,
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire

such rights in the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

No Director had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company was a party
during or at the end of the year.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment

of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
As at the date of this report, none of the Directors and their
respective associates had any interest in a business which causes or
may cause a significant competition with the business of the Group
and any other conflict of interests which any such person has or may

have with the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws and subject to the provisions
of the statutes, every Director or other officer of the Company shall
be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in
or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in
relation thereto, and no Director or other officer shall be liable
for any loss, damages or misfortune which may happen to or be
incurred by the Company in the execution of the duties of his office
or in relation thereto, provided that this bye-law shall only have
effect in so far as its provisions are not avoided by the Bermuda
Companies Act. The Company has maintained Directors and

officers liability insurance during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed
above, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into
any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.
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HE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SHARES

During the year, the Company repurchased a total of 114,900,000
shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange at an aggregate
consideration (before expenses) of HK$11,110,900.

BE HESEEAQR LTRA

RAFE  RABRE BB A4 B8 [1114,900,000
fER% 1 - SR (B (FBRFSLAT) £11,110,90078 7T ©

Particulars of the repurchases are as follows: BRIFENT:
Aggregate
consideration
Number of (before
shares repurchased Purchase price expense)
BIE
Date HE FRrEBEIR DB A BEE (HBRBAZAT)
Highest (HK$) Lowest (HK$) (HK$)
&= (BT) &K (BT) (L)

2016 —E—RF

20 May AA=+H 8,420,000 0.114 0.113 954,000
4 July +tAMmMAE 7,800,000 0111 0.108 853,780
5 July +tHARA 50,280,000 0.111 0.090 5,108,860
25 July tA=Z+HH 30,900,000 0.097 0.086 2,795,640
26 July tA=+<H 17,500,000 0.083 0.077 1,398,620

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
shares during the year ended 31 March 2017.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during
the year ended 31 March 2017.

14
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's employees are selected, remunerated and promoted

based on their merit, qualifications and competence.

The Company adopted the model set out in Code Provision B.1.2(c)
(i) of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its remuneration model for
determining the emoluments of the Directors. This model stipulates
that the remuneration committee shall make recommendations
to the board of the Company (the “Board”) on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior management.
The remuneration committee of the Company would take into
consideration, among other things, the duties and responsibilities
of the Directors and senior management and prevailing market

conditions when determining their remuneration.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme to provide
incentives to eligible persons, including directors, employees,
consultants, suppliers and customers of the Group. Details of
the scheme are set out in note 23 to the consolidated financial

statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to the existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as required under the Listing
Rules during the year and up to the date of this report.

FEABUR
AEEREDREHEN AERENMATE %
¥ RIBI -

AR BT £ T AR AR 8% 145F BIESTE B.1.2(0)(ii)
RATEER (EAETESHMAOBREN - bR
REFHEEgrRRAARESES ([E5E)EZ
BRIAITES R RERE 2 FHFS8 - ANA RIEB
ZEGETEERSRERE 2HIN HEE (K
FEE)EFERSAEREECBERBENRBATT
;R °
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BRASEES RE BEE HEILREP ZAEZ
HIEEN A M MRM 23

BREERE
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BEARRAEEERELOIARARRIB2 R EH
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. Amongst other
duties, the principal duties of the Audit Committee are to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal control
of the Group. The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors of the Company, namely Mr. Fong Wo,
Felix, Mr. Leung Wing Kin and Mr. Leung Chi Kong is the Chairman.
The audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2017 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the consolidated financial
statements of the Company have been audited by BDO Limited
("BDQO") whose term of office will expire upon the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM"). A resolution to re-
appoint BDO as auditor of the Company will be proposed to the
shareholders of the Company for approval at the AGM.

On behalf of the board of directors

Chen Yin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2017
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 March 2017 was
approximately HK$600,000, which represented an decrease of
approximately 0.33% when compared with that of last year. The
Group incurred a loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company amounting to approximately HK$14,707,000, which was
decreased by approximately HK$9,267,000 or 39% when compared
with the loss of approximately HK$23,974,000 incurred in last year.
The Group's revenue represents interest income from convertible
bonds. The decrease in the loss for the year was mainly attributable
to the decrease of impairment loss on available-for-sale financial
assets, the increase of realised gain on disposal of financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss and the decrease in operating
expenses during the year under review. The net asset value per
share of the Group as at 31 March 2017 amounted to HK$0.029
(2016: HK$0.032). The Board has decided not to declare a final
dividend for the year.

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
As at 31 March 2017, the details of major investments of the Group

were summarised as below:

Interests in an associate — unlisted equity securities

BERE

M EE

BHEZT—tF=A=1T—"BLEFE TEEKELD
#600,0007 7T - | A F R A #90.33% o A EEE LR
NEVEE AL FEEE414,707,0008 7T A&
G BT S A2 B 48 4923,974,00078 JT R 4 499,267,00078 7T
239% o AE W IR AT RREH 2 FI BN - FE
EERDEZTERAILE MG EE 2 REEER
D HERATFEAACEREE MHEEZDE
R MEEEFE NS BRSO RDMB-RF
—tF=ZA=1T—H FTEBEREEFER0029%E
T (ZZE—R"F:003287L) - ESEHATERAF
EEMmIRERARE

r&Eds
R-F—LFEZA=+—B FEEIEREFEH
AT -

R—REE QT2 s -k EHRAES

Place of Percentage Proportion
incorporation/ of effective of voting Carrying
Name of investee company operation interest held power Cost value
PR
BRIRENFAEH AR S BHEADL RELH A REE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Bonicast Construction Material People's Republic of 49% 20% 6,080 5512
(Beijing) Co., Ltd China ("PRC")
SEEEZENH (R) hEARAME
BRAF (TE])
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INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(i)

(ii)

18

Investment in convertible bonds

Name of investee company

REMEE (B
BAVEFAERSBREBECHMBEE

0]

Place of incorporation

RERTTRKRES

Cost Carrying Value

EIRELARER o fHf B 32 3t Bh 2% IREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Guanwan Investments Limited British Virgin Islands 20,000 26,459
BERERRQF REERES
Investment in Hong Kong listed equity securities (i) RENBEBLTRARES
Number of Percentage of Market
Name shares held interest held Cost value
PR FriEReR
£18 BROEE BatE R miE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THETT THETT
Shandong Molong Petroleum Machinery Co., Ltd 1,958,800 0.2455% 6,362 4133
IR EEABEMRGN AR AT
Haitong International Securities Group Limited 636,000 0.0119% 2,888 2,907
BEERFESEEER AR
Huadian Fuxin Energy Corporation Limited 1,300,000 0.0155% 2,245 2,262
EBERMERROBR AR
BYD Company Limited 81,000 0.0030% 3,633 3,491
L EE AR D B BR A Al
China Life Insurance Company Limited 300,000 0.0011% 7,264 7,155
FEASRBRMDARAA
China Galaxy Securities Co., Ltd. 1,616,000 0.0159% 11,435 11,587
H B R 3B IR D B RR A A
A.Plus Group Holdings Limited 3,300,000 0.8250% 1,000 2,376

BHEEIZERARAT
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INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

(iii)

Further details of major investments of the Group are included in

Available-for-sale Financial Assets

rEMEE (B
BAFEFAEBRBREZMBEE (&)

(i) ATHEMBEE

Percentage of

Place of effective Carrying
Name of investee company incorporation interest held Cost Value
FriFBER
BEZRENRERE = 7 B 3 3 26 EEEDL 2% FREIE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Tianjin Bao Xin Ying Precious Metals PRC 12.00% 6,590 5,256
Management Limited
REEERECBCERBRAT H
GuangZhou Shi Da Jian Credit PRC 11.59% 9,800 7,219
Guarantee Limited
BMmERERERER QR H
China Petroleum Bio-Energy Hong Kong 5.69% 24,400 58,258
Company Limited
PERRAEDRRER QA i
Yenbo Gain Limited BVI 18.18% 13,092 15,243
BBHNBR AR REERES
Perfect Worth Investment Limited BVI 5.00% 18,303 3,116
REBAERES
Golden Resources Asia Limited BVI 14.00% 10,000 9,932
REBERES
Huge Leader Investment Development BVI 18.00% 10,000 10,070
Limited REBHERE

note 16 to note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

ERAASEEIEREZE—THBRANGRAMBER

K F16E 7518 ©

Annual Report &3 2017 19



GEMENT DISCUS
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$13,772,000 (2016: approximately HK$88,814,000).
The Group had the net current assets and the net assets of
approximately HK$142,454,000 (2016: HK$185,954,000) and
approximately HK$257,815,000 (2016: HK$286,418,000) respectively
as at 31 March 2017. Save as disclosed above, the Group had no
bank and other borrowing as at 31 March 2017.

The current ratio, calculated on the basis of total current assets over
total current liabilities, was approximately 79.19 (2016: 78.84) as at
31 March 2017.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Details in the changes of the capital structure of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2017 are set out in note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements. The capital of the Company
comprises only ordinary shares as at 31 March 2017.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the business transactions of the Group are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The management of the Group
will closely monitor the fluctuation in these currencies and take
appropriate actions when needed. As at 31 March 2017, the Group
did not engage in currency hedging nor did it adopt any formal
hedging activities. The Group had not entered into any financial
derivatives in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars during the

year.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2017, there were no charges on the Group's assets
and the Group did not have any contingent liabilities.

STAFF COSTS

The Group's total staff costs (including Directors’ remuneration)
amounted to approximately HK$7,460,000 for the year ended
31 March 2017 (2016: HK$7,408,000). The employees were
remunerated based on their responsibilities and performance.
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PROSPECT

Looking ahead into the rest of 2017, the operating environment
for financial markets is expected to remain challenging. Some
advanced economies in the world are grappling with challenges
of structure, population and politics. The future growth of the
economy is inevitably subject to constraints. Being an externally-
oriented economy, Hong Kong is not immune from the

development performance of global economy.

Based on the growth momentum of the mainland China economy,
the growth rate in real terms of the mainland economy in 2016
was 6.7%. Although the growth rate was slightly lower than that in
2015, the "One Bank and Three Commissions” have collaborated
in deleveraging that brought uncertainties to the development of
the entire financial markets. Nevertheless, from another perspective,
the policy orientation of guiding capital flow into real economy can
bring new opportunities to the equity investment business of the

Company.

For the United States, the Trump administration launched a tax
reform scheme. When analyzing from the macro perspective,
if there will be a successful implementation for all measures,
the impact on the US economy will be highly positive. Though
tax income will fall in the short term, it will definitely be able to
stimulate economic growth. Meanwhile, the Federal Reserve will
raise interest rates due to the economic growth. As the United
States is the largest economy in the world, if there are significant
changes in fiscal, trade and other economic policies, it is bound to
have a material impact on global trade, investment and financial
transactions. Therefore, it is still subject to the policies to be rolled
out by the US government. We will keep a close eye on it and seize

potential investment opportunities when arise.

The EU economy maintained a moderate growth in 2016. The chain
effect caused by “Brexit” is largely controlled by far. However, the
prospective negotiations between the UK and the EU are shrouded
by uncertainties that will continue to cloud the economic outlook for
Europe in 2017. Certain banking systems in the EU are not stable,
which has become an increasing concern. Some members of the
Eurozone are plagued by debts and unsustainable public finance
as well as inelasticity in the market, which the underlying structural
issues are deep-seated and still not resolved and are expected to
remain a drag on the recovery of the region.
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PROSPECT (continued)

There is still a huge opportunity for development in the Chinese
market, despite full of uncertainties in the global economy. Going
forward, the Company will keep on seeking business investment
opportunities in the Chinese enterprises with potentials, and in
a proactive manner, especially optimistic about the enterprises
in relation to building materials, steel and energy development
projects where the infrastructure projects are benefiting from “One
Belt, One Road” initiative. The Company believes that it will bring
considerable long-term returns.

What is pleasing to note, is that in the future, Hong Kong is
poised for growth with the completion of the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-
Macao Bridge, the construction of the third runway at Hong
Kong International Airport, and a kick-start of the northeast New
Territories development areas — all manifest that Hong Kong is in
a bridging position with mainland China since it is literally a global
company. Leveraging a solid foundation and rich experience in
the past, we are convinced that Hong Kong is well positioned to
take advantage of the opportunities arising from the economic
cooperation with economies along the “One Belt, One Road” and
the shifting of world economic power from the West to the East.

The initial public offerings (“IPO”) market in mainland China is in a
promising trend and further standardization on the IPO market in
Hong Kong will attribute to value-added IPO projects. In addition,
the “New Board” recently proposed by the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange has remarkably relaxed the threshold for start-ups. This
will expand capital access for the existing investment projects of
the Company. Accordingly, the Company will input more resources
into pre-IPO private financing market in order to achieve higher

shareholder returns.

Looking ahead, the Group will adopt a pragmatic and enterprising
approach to explore investment opportunities and ride on market
trend at an optimal time with a pulse on policy development in
various regions, thereby maximizing returns to shareholders.
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MANAGE

-

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED

SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, the Company repurchased a total of 114,900,000

shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange at an aggregate
consideration (before expenses) of HK$11,110,900.

Particulars of the repurchases are as follows:

BE HEIEEALQFR LTRSS

RAFE  NRRRE B R FTE HiEE 114,900,000
FER% 5 - SR B (FBRFASLAT) £11,110,9008 7T ©

BOFBOT:

Aggregate
consideration
Number of (before
shares repurchased Purchase price expense)
BILE
Date A # FrEEE R4 8 E BEE (HERBAR AT)
Highest (HK$) Lowest (HK$) (HK$)
&= (BT) &K (BT) (&)

2016 —T-RF
20 May AAZ=+H 8,420,000 0.114 0.113 954,000
4 July +tAMA 7,800,000 0.111 0.108 853,780
5 July +tARA 50,280,000 011 0.090 5,108,860
25 July tAZ+HH 30,900,000 0.097 0.086 2,795,640
26 July +tA=+7<H 17,500,000 0.083 0.077 1,398,620

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its Bk EXXFTIEEIN  ANA RS EAT(TH B QR ER
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company's HZE-Z—+tF=ZA=+—HILFERNEE - EO=K
shares during the year ended 31 March 2017. HERR IR ©
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Board recognises the importance of corporate governance
practice of a listed company and is committed to adopting the
standards of corporate governance. It is in the interest of the
shareholders and stakeholders for a listed company to operate in
a transparent manner with the adoptions of various self-regulatory
policies, procedures and monitoring mechanisms with a clear
definition of accountability of directors and management. The
Company and the Directors confirm, to the best of their knowledge,
that the Company has complied with the Code of Corporate
Governance practices (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March 2017, except the
deviation disclosed in the following paragraph:

Code Provision A.6.7

The code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code states that independent
non-executive directors should also attend general meetings and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
One of the independent non-executive directors was eligible but
unable to attend the annual general meeting of the Company held

on 31 August 2016 due to other important engagement.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition
The Board members during the year and up to the date of this

report were as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee
Mr. Zhang Xuming

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Chen Yin

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix
Mr. Leung Wing Kin
Mr. Leung Chi Kong
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The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group's businesses, investment
and strategic decisions and performance. The executive Board,
investment manager and senior management have been delegated
with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the day-to-day
operations of the Group while reserving certain key matters for the
approval by the Board. In addition, the Board has also delegated
various responsibilities to the Board committees. Further details of
these Board committees are set out in this Corporate Governance

Report.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced
board composition is formed to ensure strong independence
exists across the Board and has met recommended practice under
the Code for the Board to have at least one-third of its members
comprising independent non-executive Directors. The biographical
information of the existing Directors is set out on pages 47 to 50
under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management”.

Chairman

The role of the chairman of the Company takes the lead in
formulating overall strategies and policies of the Group; ensures
the effective performance by the Board of its functions, including
compliance with good corporate governance practices and
encourages and facilitates active contribution of Directors in Board
activities. The Chairman also ensures that all Directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and have received
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely manner

with the assistance of the company secretary.

Executive Directors

The executive Directors are responsible for running the Group
and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. They lead the
Group's management team in accordance with the directions set
by the Board and are responsible for ensuring that proper internal
control system is in place and the Group's business conforms to

applicable laws and regulations.
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Non-executive Director and Independent non-executive
Directors

The non-executive Director and the independent non-executive
Directors serve the important function of ensuring and monitoring
the basis for an effective corporate governance framework. Their
participations provide adequate checks and balances to safeguard
the interests of the Group and its shareholders. The Board consists
of three independent non-executive Directors and each of them
has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. All independent non-executive
Directors are financially independent from the Company. The
Company confirmed with all independent non-executive Directors
as to their independence with reference to the factors as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Board Meetings
The attendance of each Director at Board meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2017 was as follows:

FUTEERBUNFNTES

FATEERBUFNTEZTZEERERERRK
ERMEERRBRN - REZ2ERH B HHIE A
REAEERERR G EREBE=RBIIH
WITES NEHRAREIEXEBRN G NAL
BEREMEEXNE 2R B IFNTEFTEMK
LFIBTRARE AR RS LR BISE3.131%
FBER EREBBUIFNTES 2B LTS -

Exgel
BE_TtHF-A=1—"HLFE SEFRES
EERIHMFRENT

Number of
meetings
Name of Director attended/held
HE BT
EEnR 2R¥E
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chan Cheong Yee PREE LA 13/13
Mr. Zhang Xuming SRMBARSE & 13/13
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Chen Yin B RLEE 13/13
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix FHOMEE 3/13
Mr. Leung Wing Kin R 3/13
Mr. Leung Chi Kong RER L 3/13
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DIRECTORS' TRAINING

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the company

secretary continuously updates all Directors on latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance of the same by all Directors.
All Directors are encouraged to attend external forum or training
courses on relevant topics which may count towards continuous

professional development training.

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 of the "Corporate Governance
Code”, Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. For the period from 1 April 2016 to 31 March
2017, all Directors had participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities either by attending training
courses or by reading materials relevant to the Company's business

or to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary Mr. Yan Ho Yin is a full time employee of the
Company. He fulfills the requirement under rules 3.28 and 3.29 of
the Listing Rules. The company secretary reports to the Chairman
and supports the Board, ensures good information flow within the
Board and Board policy and procedures are followed; advises the
Board on governance matters, facilitates induction and, monitors
the training and continuous professional development of Directors.
He has attained not less than 15 hours of relevant professional

training during the review period.

INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance, with
coverage being reviewed annually, to indemnify the directors and
officers from their risk exposure arising from corporate activities.
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SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION

In respect of regular board meetings, an agenda and accompanying
board papers of the meeting are sent in full to all directors in
advance before the intended date of a meeting. The management
has the obligation to supply the Board and the various Board
committees with adequate information in a timely manner to
enable the members to make informed decisions. Each Director
has separate and independent access to the Group's senior
management to acquire more information than is volunteered by

management and to make further enquiries if necessary.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises all three independent non-
executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Leung Chi Kong.
The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year. The Audit
Committee is mainly responsible for overseeing the Company's
financial reporting system and internal control procedures; making
recommendations to the Board in the appointment and removal of
the external auditors and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditors; and any questions of
resignation or dismissal of such auditors; and reviewing the interim
and annual reports and the financial statements of the Group. The

terms of reference are available on the Company’s website.

RERHEER

WEHESETERME  TEREREREFTE X
RREERAMAXE2RES - EREEREMERE
FERREFTLETENRUARER UEZKE
{ERABARTE - REF AR KB MEBEAEES
REERE URSEEBEHREUINZER IR
BREREE-—TER-

BEREES
ERZEEMER-RBEIIFRTESRAK  ARE
MAEREEIER -ERZECEEFRIBITMAE
FHOERZESTRRAAREARRZMBHBRR
RAREERF  RERERBRINERBMAERES
PR AR A RIS BB 2 3 R R BB 5K ]
A BB 2 B E S e R h R AR REEHA
SETHRFEREARPBERE - BEBERAD
BABVE AT &R -

The attendance of each member at Audit Committee meetings HE_Z—+F=A=+T—HIFE SKELES
during the year ended 31 March 2017 was as follows: BREESGHRLENT

Number of

meetings

Name attended/held

HE BT

"H 2R¥E

Mr. Leung Chi Kong (Chairman) REMLE (L) 2/2

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix 7Rk AE 2/2

Mr. Leung Wing Kin RElEEE 2/2
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company’'s Remuneration Committee consists of all three
independent non-executive Directors and the non-executive
Director Mr. Chen Yin, and is chaired by Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, an
independent non-executive Director. The Remuneration Committee
is mainly responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the Company's remuneration policy for Directors and senior
management, and overseeing the remuneration packages of the
executive Directors and senior management. The terms of reference

are available on the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee has considered and approved
the Group's policy for the remuneration of directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee has assessed the
performance of the executive directors and considered the
remuneration package of executive directors by reference to the
prevailing packages with companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Details of the directors’ remuneration are disclosed
on an individual basis in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group adopts a competitive remuneration package
for its employees. Promotion and salary increments are assessed
based on a performance related basis.

yMEES

ARRFHEEREHEB=RBILIFNTEFTRFE
HITESRAEER  ABYIFNTESIMEL
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FERR -FMEE S HERTERZRE LK
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The attendance of each member at Remuneration Committee #HE-ZT—+tF=A=+—HIFE FXKELFH
meeting during the year ended 31 March 2017 was as follows: WEEeSHRLHENT

Number of

meetings

Name attended/held

HE BT

s =14

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix (Chairman) B OMEE (£E) 2/2

Mr. Leung Wing Kin REREE 2/2

Mr. Leung Chi Kong ZER 4 2/2

Mr. Chen Yin PR Rl A 2/2
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company's Nomination Committee consists of all three
independent non-executive Directors and the non-executive
Director Mr. Chen Yin, and is chaired by Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, an
independent non-executive Director. The primary function of
the Nomination Committee is to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board annually and make recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Group's
corporate strategy. The terms of reference are available on the
Company's website.

REZEE
ARBRAZECHEB-EBIIFRITESTRIHE
HITESRACEAER BB IFRTESTHMELE
BEIR REZESIEREREFRIEESHE
B ABRMAK YREFE2TARERBRERE
B UBREREE P ERE HBEEEN AR RS
SR R]

The attendance of each member at Nomination Committee #HE-ZT—tF=A=+—HIFE FKELFR
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2017 was as follows: FLEEIRCHENT
Number of
meetings
Name attended/held
HE BT
s =14
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix (Chairman) B OMEE (£E) 2/2
Mr. Leung Wing Kin REfETE 2/2
Mr. Leung Chi Kong ZEM & 2/2
Mr. Chen Yin PR RS A 2/2
RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE BREEEES

The Company's Risk Management Committee consists of all three
independent non-executive Directors, the executive Director Mr.
Zhang Xuming and the company secretary Mr. Yan Ho Yin, and is
chaired by Mr. Leung Chi Kong, an independent non-executive
Director. The primary function of the Risk Management Committee
is to review, monitor, manage and control the existing investments,
developing and reviewing the risk management policy and
monitoring the effective running of the risk management.
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The attendance of each member at Risk Management Committee #BE_Z—tF=A=+—HItFE EXELFEA
meetings during the year ended 31 March 2017 was as follows: REBZEEGZLHNAT:

Number of

meetings

Name attended/held

HE BT
HE 2R¥E
Mr. Leung Chi Kong (Chairman) REMEE () 11
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix 7Rk 1/1
Mr. Leung Wing Kin R A 1/1
Mr. Zhang Xuming SRIBARSE A& 11
Company Secretary ARWE
Mr. Liu Jiazhen (Resigned on 13/1/2017) EHLE (R —tF—A+=HET) 11
Mr. Yan Ho Yin (Appointed on 13/1/2017) TEBEE (RZE—tF—AT=AEZT) 01
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION EERBEE

No corporate governance committee has been established and AARWEKITEEAREZER EFTTEFTRNITL
the Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance  ¥(E RBEL BRI REE R RAIZHE  bEE
functions, which includes developing and reviewing the Company's JAE#H EZRESNERE 2 EIIRSEFEEE -
policies, practices on corporate governance, training and ARRAGHMETEEREESZRZBERERF -
continuous professional development of Directors and senior [BIEFE EFGEREFEARAZEEERBELS
management, the Company's policies and practices on compliance ~ #°

with legal and regulatory requirements etc. During the year under

review, the Board has reviewed the Company's policies and

practices on corporate governance.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Group's
consolidated financial statements for each financial period
and to ensure that the consolidated financial statements are in
accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board also ensures the timely publication of the
consolidated financial statements. The Directors, having made
appropriate enquiries, confirm that they are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern. The statements of the auditor of the Group regarding their
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 51 to 57 of this annual
report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board, recognising its overall responsibility in ensuring the
system of internal controls of the Group and for reviewing its
effectiveness, is committed to implementing an effective and sound
internal control system to safeguard the interests of shareholders
and the assets of the Group. Procedures have been designed
to safeguard assets against unauthorised use or disposition, to
ensure the sufficient allocation of resources and manpower and
the maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for publication, and
to ensure compliance with applicable law, rules and regulations.
The procedures provide a reasonable but not absolute assurance
and prevention of material untrue statements or losses, as well
as management on the interruption of the Group’s management
system and risks existing in the course of arriving at the Group's

objectives.

The management of the Group has conducted a review on the
Group's internal control and risk management system for the
year ended 31 March 2017 with no material weakness found. The
management will continue to improve and strengthen its control
in order to enhance the corporate governance and safeguard the

interest of its shareholders.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid and payable to the
Company's auditor, BDO Limited for audit service of the year ended
31 March 2017 is HK$488,000 and there is no non-audit service
provided during the year ended 31 March 2017.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the directors. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all the
Directors have complied with the required standard set out in the

Model Code throughout the year.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director

Subject to the Bye-laws and applicable laws, rules and regulations,
the Company may in a general meeting by ordinary resolution elect
any person to be a director of the Company either to fill a casual

vacancy on the Board, or as an addition to the existing Board.

A shareholder who is entitled to attend and vote at the meeting
may propose a person (the “Candidate”) other than a director
of the Company for election as a director at a general meeting
by lodging the following documents at the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong (Suites 2706-2707, 27/F., Everbright
Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong) for the
attention of the company secretary:

1. A written notice signed by the shareholder concerned which
is given of his/her intention to propose the Candidate for

election;

2. A written notice signed by the Candidate indicating his/
her willingness to be elected, together with the Candidate’s
biographical details as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules; and

3. The Candidate’s written consent to the publication of his/her
personal data.
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The period for lodgment of the above documents shall have
given to the company secretary of the Company during a period
commencing no earlier than the day after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and
ending no later than 7 days prior to the date of such meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

Special general meetings shall be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more registered members of the Company
deposited at the registered office in Bermuda specifying the objects
of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.
General meetings may also be convened on the written requisition
of any one member of the Company which is a recognised clearing
house (or its nominee) deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to
have such a principal office, the registered office specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided
that such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company. If the Board does not within 21 days from the date
of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting,
the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene
the general meeting in the same manner as nearly as possible, as
that in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided
that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The chairman of
the Company as well as the chairman and members of various
Board committees are pleased to answer shareholders’ questions.
Separate resolutions are proposed at general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
directors. Details of poll voting procedures and the rights of
shareholders to demand a poll are included in the circular to
shareholders despatched together with the annual report. The
circular also includes relevant details of proposed resolutions,
including biographies of each candidates standing for re-election.
The results of the poll are published on the Company’s website,
and on the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
(http://www.hkex.com.hk).

INVESTOR RELATIONS

During the year under review, the Group has proactively
enhanced its corporate transparency and communications with
its shareholders and the investment community through the
announcement of its mandatory interim and final reports. Through
the timely distribution of other announcements, the Group has also

kept the public abreast of its latest developments.
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It is the first year for the Company to publish Environmental, Social
and Governance (the “ESG") Report. Being a listed company, apart
from strictly complying with the Code of Corporate Governance
practices as set out in the Listing Rules to maintain a high ethical
standard, the Board also strives to be a responsible corporation by
placing great emphasis on the environmental protection, people
oriented and community care. The Board believes that these
sustainability objectives can align with the company’s business

strategies to contribute most favorable return for stakeholders.

The Company is an investment company and is principally
engaged in investments in a diversified portfolio of listed and
unlisted companies. As an investment company, the Company
does not directly participate in the production and operation of
these listed and unlisted companies. While actively seeking to
optimise its investment portfolio and maximise shareholder return,
the Company lives up to its corporate social responsibility and
strikes a balance between the interests of stakeholders such as
the shareholders and the community, with the ultimate goal of
achieving a sustainable corporation.

This ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide") as contained in the Listing
Rules. The ESG Guide requires a listed company to identify and
disclose ESG information that is material and relevant to its

business.

A. ENVIRONMENT
A1. Emissions
As the Company is engaged in investment business,
its emissions such as air pollutants and greenhouse
gas emissions, and discharges into water and land do
not have significant impact on the environment. Non-
hazardous wastes (commercial wastes and the disposal
of computer devices and office equipment) produced by

the Company are also at a minimum.
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A. ENVIRONMENT (continued)
A2. Use of Resources

The Company commits to protect the environment by

mainly focusing on the reduction in electricity, paper

and water consumption. To achieve this, the Company

continually applies efficient consumption strategy to

improve energy saving and reduce energy consumption.

I Electricity:
In order to reduce the consumption of electricity in

office, the Company always encourages all staff to:

Set the central air-conditioning system at

room temperature of 25.5 °C;

Set the computers and printers in energy-
saving mode when not being used;

Switch off all lights in office when all staffs
have left after office hours;

Switch off lights in meeting rooms when not
being in use;

Switch off printers when all staffs have left

after office hours;

Turn off computers and monitors overnights
except it is required for working purpose

such as system updates;

Remove all the electronic chargers from the
sockets when not being used; and

Join the WWEF Earth Hour 2016 event.

Il. Paper:

In order to reduce paper usage in office, the

Company always encourages all staff to:

Print in duplex;
Use recycled paper for printing;
Print in black and white; and

E-storage of documents.
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A. ENVIRONMENT (continued)
A2. Use of Resources (continued)

lll. Water:
Water consumption of the Company is minimal.

Employees are encouraged not to waste water.

A3. Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of the business, in addition to the
above-mentioned emissions and resource usage, the
Company does not have any direct and significant
impacts on the environment and natural resources in the

course of its operation.

Staff members believe it is important to minimise their
impact on the environment and natural resources due to
the operations. In fact, as the Company's operations do
not directly involve the use of natural resources, there
is comparatively little impact on the environment and

natural resources.

B. SOCIAL

38

B1.

B2.

Employment

Employees are regarded as the greatest and valuable
assets and core competitive advantage of the Company
and also provide driving force for the continuous

innovation of the Company.

A set of Human Resources policy is provided which
clearly states the recruitment and promotion, staff
benefits and welfare, compensation and dismissal, equal
employment opportunities without any discrimination
against gender, marital status, age, race, nationality and

religion etc

Health and Safety

The Company is committed to providing and
maintaining a safe and healthy workplace for all
employees. Every employee has enough working space
in office and small fitness equipment is offered in office
to support health. The Company provides its staff with
mandatory provident fund (MPF) and, medical insurance
(including in-patient and out-patient). In the Year, no
work related injuries or fatalities were recorded.
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SOCIAL (continued)

B2.

B3.

B4.

Health and Safety (continued)

The Company has developed a set of work safety
codes covering areas of environmental hygiene and
cleanliness, machine operation, smoking ban and fire
prevention, hazardous materials handling, arrangements
in times of typhoons and rainstorms, as well as response
to emergencies, etc. It also requires strict compliance

with these work safety codes by its employees.

Development and training

The Company supports its staff to develop and enhance
their professional knowledge and skills to cope with
the evolving market environment and compliance level.
On top of on-the-job training, the staff members are
encouraged to take external professional training to

strengthen their work-related expertise.

The Company has always encouraged staff members to
attend courses or seminars organized by professional
bodies and regularly update their knowledges on
investments, accounting standards, Listing Rules, the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and the Companies

Ordinances.

The Company also offers education allowance
as incentive for employees to take professional

examinations.

We adopt a five-day workweek and encourage our
employees to have a good balance among health, work

and social or family activities.

Labour Standards

The Company has complied with the applicable
employment-related laws and regulations currently in
force in Hong Kong. The Company does not employ
staff who are below 18 years of age. The Company
provides such rights and benefits to its employees which
are no less than those required statutorily. No employee
is paid less than the minimum wage specified by the
Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of the Laws
of Hong Kong). The Company's contributions to the
defined contribution retirement scheme it operated
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are made

by each monthly contribution day.
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B7. Anti-corruption

The Company is committed to adhering to the highest
ethical standards and maintaining a culture of integrity
and justice for preventing, detecting and reporting all

types of fraud, including corruption.

The Company seeks to encourage strict policies that
prohibit bribery and other improper payments to
public officials consistent with the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
similar laws in other countries in which the company

invests.

All staff members are to comply with provisions laid
down in the Staff Handbook, “Anti-bribery, Bribe-
taking; Bribe-providing, Conflict of Interest”. The Staff
Handbook stipulates that if an employee breaks the
company policy or any Hong Kong laws and regulations,
the Company has the right to terminate the employment
contract.

There was no legal case regarding corrupt practices
nor any case of corruption found or reported by the
Company during the Year.

The Risk Management Committee was set up to
regularly evaluate and determine the nature and extent
of risks to the Company. Interest of shareholders and

stakeholders can hence be further being protected.

Since the Board has recognized the importance of
corporate governance practice, it strictly complies
with the Code of Corporate Governance practices as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Moreover,
anti-corruption policy is adopted and all directors and
employees are required to sign the Code of Conduct of
the Company.

Furthermore, the Company regularly updates and
informs employees which securities are forbidden to
purchase due to conflict of interests. During the Year, no
bribery, extortion, fraud or money laundering was found.
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B. SOCIAL (continued)
B8. Community Investment
The Company had established a company limited by
guarantee and not having a share capital called Green
Rhythm Limited for the objectives including but not
limited to the following:—

- To conserve, protect, and improve the
environment in Hong Kong for the public benefit
by promoting a sustainable lifestyle on a non-profit
making basis through the reduction of pollution
and waste, increasing the recycling rate of waste
and the use of renewable energy;

- For the advancement of environmental protection
or improvement for the benefit of Hong Kong
community, on a non-profit making basis, to raise
community awareness of and promote public
support for issues related to environmental
protection, energy, conservation and sustainable

development;

- To provide for relief in poverty in Hong Kong and
elsewhere by means of all kinds of social welfare
services and medical support to those who are in

need.

The Company firmly believes that Green Rhythm Limited
can contribute to the community interests in the aspects
of environment protection and social welfare in Hong

Kong.
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OUR STAKEHOLDERS C.
The Company is searching for every opportunity to
understand and engage our stakeholder to ensure
improvement can be implemented to our products and
services. We strongly believe our stakeholders play a crucial

role in sustaining the success of our business.

RMNREEEE
ARA-EFRGERNEAME TREZA
HRE R - LA REAR TR PO BE R R AR S T SR
RIPIRE - FEIEME AR ERGEBR
NFERREENEENAEG:

Stakeholders Possible concerned issues Communication and responses
MEMEEE AREREEER BEREE
HKEx Compliance of listing rules, timely and Meetings, training, roadshows,

accurate announcements.

Bt 32 P BF R A B R T R T B R
==
=

Government Compliance of laws and regulations,
preventing tax evasion, and social
welfare.

B BPERRER BT IR AL &R A

Investors Corporate governance system,

business strategies and performance,

investment returns.

RrEE EEERRS EBREERAN LK
N EEE
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workshops, programs, website
updates and announcements.

B H BRIy 518 BUAE
NN

Interaction and visits, government

inspections, tax returns and other

information.
BEERGEH  BUFRE RRXBHEREE
foExy -

Organizing and participating in
seminars, interviews, shareholders'’
meetings, financial reports or
operation reports for investors, media
and analysts.

MEL2ELKREE KREEDITEE
WEEE % RRAERERSE
RHUMBHRERLERS -
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Media & Public

ENVIRC

OUR STAKEHOLDERS (continued)
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Possible concerned issues

AREEEEE

E@ﬁ‘%ta

C. HRFANRN=ZMEEE @)

Communication and responses

BEKEE

HRERQR

Customers

'R

Employees

Community

HE

Corporate governance, environmental

protection, human right.

EEER RR AEEH-

Service quality, delivery times,

reasonable prices, service value,
personal data protection.

REE R XNRHE SBER REE

B BABRIRE-

Rights and benefits, employee
compensation, training and

development, work hours, working
environment.

R R AEA - B BB R R T
TERF [ TYERIR -

Community environment, employment

and community development, social
welfare.

HRIRE  EREAEERER LSRN

Issue of newsletters on the Company'’s
web site.

NN S L

After-sales services.

Conducting union activities, trainings,
interviews for employees, internal

memos, employee suggestion boxes.

EITTEAE 5 REEE

FETTEA
AN TS RIEEBERME-

Developing community activities,
employee voluntary activities and

community welfare subsidies and
donations.

MELREE BEETEAHLHER

AL R 1R -
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HKEX ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

I
U
K

BRERA R

b
i

HERERRERES

hu)

RER

"Comply or
HKEX ESG Guide | explain” Recommended
Subject Areas Provisions Disclosures Reference in the report
ERRXGRR-
HERERESE |[FTETHMAERE]
R 1R EERE rEE2B2E
A. Environmental
A RIR
Aspect A1: Disclosed Refer to the "Environmental” section of the ESG
Emissions Report
BEA1 : HBY B E A2ERE HeRERMET [RE]IEH
Aspect A2: Disclosed
Use of Resources
BHEA2 ERER | DHE
Aspect A3: The Disclosed
Environment and
Natural Resources
EHEA3 RERK | EHE
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HKEX ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (continued)

BERARGZMRE dgRERHRERES (@)

“"Comply or
HKEX ESG Guide | explain” Recommended
Subject Areas Provisions Disclosures Reference in the report
ERXGRE-
HERERESE | [TETHER]
BE w3 ERRE EHEE2BE
B. Social
B. tt&
Employment and Labour Practices
BRERETIESR
Aspect B1: Disclosed Refer to the “Social” section of the ESG Report
Employment
EEB1 : EfE B F2HRE LG RERBRET [LE | E5
Aspect B2: Disclosed
Health and Safety
[EEB2 : @EHEZ S
S
Aspect B3: Disclosed
Development and
Training
[EEB3 : #ERIE B EE
Ll
Aspect B4: Disclosed
Labour Standards
JEHEB4 : &5 TR B
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HKEX ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE (continued)

BERARGZMRE dERERHRERES (@)

HKEX ESG Guide
Subject Areas
ERBRZERR-
HERERESE
AR

“Comply or
explain”
Provisions

[ 38 <F 5 7 12 |

1R 3

Recommended
Disclosures

BEERE

Reference in the report

rHEZBE

Operating Practices

[EHEBS : HEEE
b

RAERKE

EEEH

Aspect B5: Not disclosed The office-based operation of the Company is not
Supply Chain considered to have a significant environmental and
Management social risks of the supply chain.

RARREEURANE BT 7 EFEEERE PR
Tﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁi&fﬁﬂﬂi@ﬂ % o

Aspect Bé6: Not disclosed The office-based operation of the Company is not

Product considered to have significant environmental and

Responsibility social risks of product responsibility due to its nature
of business.

[EEB6 : EmMEIE REWE ARBIRREREBUEE EUBRRXERTMNEE
EEMBEE L TEBREAREIEGEAR -

Aspect B7: Anti- Disclosed Refer to the “Social” section of the ESG Report

corruption

EHEB7 : RES B E A2HRE HERERARET [HE | E5H

Community

HE

Aspect B8: Disclosed Refer to the “Social” section of the ESG Report

Community

Investment

[EEBS : HtBIRE 2R E F2HRE G RERBRET [LE | E6H
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IOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF D

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee, aged 53, has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company since May 2012. Mr. Chan
holds a Bachelor of Science degree from the College of Business
Administration of The University of South Florida in the United
States of America. Mr. Chan is currently a licensed person to
carry out type 1 (dealing in securities), type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts), type 3 (leveraged foreign exchange trading) and type 9
(asset management) regulated activities under the Securities and
Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). He is
experienced in dealing in securities, fund management, corporate
management, corporate finance and managing listed investment
companies under Chapter 21 of the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on the Stock Exchange.

In June 2003, Mr. Chan joined China Innovation Investment Limited
(stock code: 1217) (“Cll"), an investment company listed on the
Stock Exchange, as an executive director. He was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of Bingo Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8220), a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange, in August 2007, and was
redesignated as an executive director of Bingo Group Holdings
Limited in April 2009. Mr. Chan was appointed as an executive
director of China Investment and Finance Group Limited (stock
code: 1226) (“CIFG") in March 2011, an executive director of
Capital VC Limited (stock code: 2324) ("CVC") in November
2012, an executive director of China New Economy Fund Limited
(stock code: 80) ("CNEF") in June 2013 and an executive director
of China Trends Holdings Limited (stock code: 8171) (“CTH") in
February 2016. All of ClI, CIFG, CVC, CNEF and CTH are investment
companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Zhang Xuming, aged 47, was appointed as the chief executive
officer of the Company in March 2013 and was also appointed as
an executive Director in March 2016. He obtained his Bachelor
of Economics degree from Huazhong University of Science and
Technology in The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") in 1992
and obtained his PRC financial economics qualification certificate of

specialty and technology in 1996.

In 2008, Mr. Zhang served as the vice president of China Resources
and Transportation Group Limited, whose shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 269) and was responsible for
supervising project investment, sales and marketing and overseas
businesses. Prior to joining China Resources and Transportation
Group Limited, Mr. Zhang held various senior positions in several
well known trust investment companies and land and property
development companies in the PRC. He was also appointed as a
distinguished visiting professor of the faculty of finance of Nankai
University since 2011.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chen Yin, aged 44, has been appointed as a non-executive
Director and the Chairman of the Board of the Company since
October 2013. Mr. Chen received his bachelor’'s degree in electronic
engineering from Tianjin Institute of Technology (currently known
as Tianjin University of Technology), in the PRC in 1994. Mr. Chen
held various positions in financial institutions including Tianjin
Trust Investment Company (currently known as Tianjin Trust Co.,
Ltd.), Bohai Securities Co., Ltd, Xiamen Securities Co., Ltd., and
several fund management companies in the PRC. Mr. Chen has
over 18 years of extensive experience in investment management,
corporate finance, securities dealing and private equity business
areas. Mr. Chen was also appointed as a distinguished visiting
researcher by the Economics Research Institute of Nankai University
since 2010.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, B8S, JF aged 66, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company since 2011.
Mr. Fong was the founding partner of Arculli Fong & Ng (now
renamed as King & Wood Mallesons) and is a consultant of King
& Wood Mallesons. Mr. Fong received his engineering degree in
Canada in 1974 and his Juris Doctor degree from Osgoode Hall Law
School in Toronto in 1978.

Mr. Fong is a member of the law societies of Hong Kong and
England, and had been honorary legal counsels of a number
of non-profit organisations in Hong Kong such as The Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong.

Mr. Fong is currently one of the China-appointed Attesting Officers
in Hong Kong appointed by the Ministry of Justice of China. Mr.
Fong undertook a number of community and social roles, such
as the former Chairman of the Chinese Canadian Association of
Hong Kong, the Chairman of the Advisory Council on Food and
Environmental Hygiene and a member of the Hong Kong Film
Development Council. He is also a director of the Hong Kong
Basic Law Institute Limited, a member of Guangdong Provincial
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
and a director of China Overseas Friendship Association. In the area
of education, Mr. Fong is a founding member and the first director
of the Canadian International School of Hong Kong, and an advisor

to the Faculty of Business of University of Victoria in Canada.

Currently, Mr. Fong is an independent non-executive director of a
number of listed companies, namely Guangdong Land Holdings
Limited, Greenland Hong Kong Holdings Limited, Evergeen
International Holdings Limited, Sheen Tai Holdings Group Company
Limited and Xinming China Holdings Limited, whose stocks are
listed on the Stock Exchange, and Mr. Fong was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of WuXi Biologics (Cayman)
Inc. and Bank of Shanghai (Hong Kong) Limited with effect from
May 2017 and June 2017 respectively. Mr. Fong is a Justice of the
Peace and was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Government

of Hong Kong in recognition of his public service.
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Mr. Leung Wing Kin, aged 59, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director since June 2012. Mr. Leung has
over 20 years of management experience in the leisure and tourism
business. He is the vice chief of the Audit Committee of Project
Ganquan of the Chinese Association of Poverty Alleviation and
Development managed by The State Council Leading Group Office
of Poverty Alleviation and Development.

Mr. Leung Chi Kong, aged 47, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director since February 2014. Mr.
Leung was awarded the degrees of Bachelor of Arts in Economic
and Social Studies in 1994 and Master of Business Administration
(with Merit) in 2007 respectively. He is holding the professional
designations of Certified Public Accountant and Chartered
Financial Analyst. Mr. Leung has been engaged in the securities
and finance industry for more than 16 year. He is currently a director
of compliance and risk management of a multi-national securities
group and he is fully in charge of supervising the compliance and
risk management functions. Prior to this post, he was a responsible
officer for the regulated activities of dealing in securities, advising
on securities and corporate finance of a Japanese listed securities
organization in Hong Kong for more than 5 years. He was an
independent non-executive director of Sage International Group
Limited (stock code: 8082) during the period from 27 July 2001 to 31
August 2011, which are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yan Ho Yin, aged 28, has been appointed as the company
secretary and one of the authorised representatives of the Company
with effect from 13 January 2017. Mr. Yan is also the financial
controller of the Company. Mr. Yan is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

BYRBEMKES

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
EEE : +852 2218 8288 ERATHEEP1113E
{EH : +852 2815 2239 JKEZHI>254%

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA INVESTMENT
DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with
limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Investment Development Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “"Group”) set out on pages 58 to 143,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
(the “"Code"), and we have fulfilled our

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We

Professional Accountants”

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BYRBEMBKES

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Valuation of unlisted available-for-sale financial assets
and unlisted financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Refer to notes 17 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group had unlisted available-for-sale financial assets and
unlisted financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately HK$109,094,000 and HK$26,459,000 respectively
were measured at fair value as at 31 March 2017. The fair values
were assessed by the management based on valuations performed

by an independent valuer (the “Valuer”) engaged by the Group.

The valuations of the unlisted available-for-sale financial assets and
unlisted financial assets at fair value through profit or loss involved
significant judgement and estimates, including the determination of
valuation methodology and the selection of different inputs to the

valuation models.

We identified the valuation of unlisted available-for-sale financial
assets and unlisted financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss as a key audit matter as it requires management to exercise
significant judgement and estimation, and was assessed by us to be

a significant risk of material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

How our audit addressed the key audit matter:
Our audit procedures in relation to management's impairment

assessment included:

- Assessing the competence, capabilities, independence and

objectivity of the Valuer;

- Assessing the valuation methodology used and the
appropriateness of the key bases and assumptions used,
and discussing these bases and assumptions with the

management and the Valuer;

- Challenging the reasonableness of the key assumptions based

on our knowledge of the investees’ businesses and industries;

- Obtaining supportive evidence for the significant judgements
and estimates of the valuations and the key inputs used in the

valuations; and

- Checking the mathematical accuracy of the valuation.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BYRBEMBKES

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The audit committee of the Company
(“"Audit Committee”) assists the directors in discharging their
responsibility in this regard.

54 Annual Report F & 2017
p

ESHGAMBBRRAREZEE

E=ZRHEARBESMASHRMZEER LR
SEAIRBFBRARRIZ HERTE  REURE M BH
KANERBERAFRBR BEREZRN TEERES
BRANE 2 NEREHE ARG BT S M ISR I &
FHEERBRRL (TR E ARFFRERGIE) -

NERGAMBREE EFAAETE BEES
TR AR T S AT
OER AREASREEARIER RIEESH
B BEEARIELEE RAEEOERGE

= Ab
B EREE S



China Investment Development Limited e Bl & 2 AR AR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYZREHRES

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the ®
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among &%
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other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and REABZER  BFEFZNEZE B H A EHE
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in il Z (A ERAIEEEZE S 28

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that &%

NABRZZEGRRIEN FHATSCETEH

we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding B3It 2 EEREER WA EHSIERRA LR

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships £&

E2BUECBEIEMEE KA HEE

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our (RER)EHEFTEAZ AEE®-

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chan Wing Fai

Practising Certificate Number P05443

Hong Kong, 28 June 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEEkEMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E2—F—+&=A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF T —RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt % FET T T
Revenue W zs 600 602
Other income H i g A 262 278
Change in fair value of financial assets at WAL EASAEBREEREY
fair value through profit or loss B iR EE N EEH (660) 11,687
Net realised gain/(loss) on disposals of HERNTES AEIEDS
financial assets at fair value through IR B R E Y
profit orloss B2RS (B518)F8 2,128 (455)
Administrative and other expenses 1T R EH AR (17,037) (36,086)
Share of result of an associate DME—FREE AT 2 EiE 16 - =
Loss before income tax expense M e E S RIER 9 (14,707) (23,974)
Income tax expense e 8 - -
Loss for the year attributable to owners of KA FHEE AJE(GREE
the Company B8 (14,707) (23,974)
Other comprehensive income Hih2mE kS
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently EH 2 alacEFHIEE 8BS
to profit or loss: >IEE
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AHEMBEEY
financial assets N (EEE (1,815) 28,918
Reclassification of investment revaluation BT ER K EE
reserve upon impairment of EE R ER R EEG
available-for-sale financial assets Bl > ¥ 5 kE (578) 2383
Exchange difference arising from KREE —KEEZLNT
an associate during the year BV EH 25 (362) (210)
Other comprehensive income for the year, N EH A2 W - B
net of tax Fi1E (2,755) 31,091
Total comprehensive income for the year NEEmkzERE (17,462) 7,117
Loss per share SREE 12
— Basic (HK cent per share) —E KR (FREAE) 0.166 0.278
— Diluted (HK cent per share) — 58 (FRES10) 0.166 0.278
Proceeds from disposals of financial assets & A FEt AfEER
at fair value through profit or loss EECEKEEY
P8 RKE 70,922 40,522
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e M BARR R

As at 31 March 2017 R=Z—t&=A=+—H

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Mo e TET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERARE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB MRS 14 755 1,115
Interest in an associate R—REE DA 2w 16 5,512 5,874
Available-for-sale financial assets A EMSEE 17 109,094 93,475
115,361 100,464
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at fair value BERAFEFAEEBRERE
through profit or loss ZEEE 18 68,314 38,235
Other receivables, deposit and HibERIE 12 &
prepayments TR IR 19 62,190 61,294
Bank and cash balances RITABEER 20 13,772 88,814
144,276 188,343
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accrued charges H fth fEAT R IB R FEET B R 1,822 2,389
Net current assets RBEEZRE 142,454 185,954
Net assets EEFE 257,815 286,418
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B AR R

As at 31 March 2017 A=Z—+4%=H=+—8”

2017 2016
—E—tF NS
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt % THET FAT
EQUITY RS
Equity attributable to owners RAREE AELL
of the Company =

Share capital [ 21 8,822 8,937
Reserves ik 248,993 277,481
Total equity B 257,815 286,418
Net asset value per share BREEFE 24 HK$0.029# 7t = HK$0.032/% 7T

On behalf of the board of directors

Chen Yin
BRJE

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GERERBBR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

Investment Share
Share Share  revaluation option  Exchange Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
REEf BRE
Bx  ROEE e R EREE  RiER &zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn ThL ThEL TAL TATL TATL TART
(Note 21) (Note 22) (Note 22) (Note 22) (Note 22)
(W20 (Wz22) (Wen)  (W@E2) (WE2)
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 RZB-EEZA=t-HR
—E-REMA-H 8,343 265,018 7,659 12341 47 (215,411) 189,067
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - - (23,974) (23,974
Other comprehensive income EthzEhis
Change in fair value of AHERBEEL
available-for-sale financial assets NTEEE - - 28918 - - - 28,918
Reclassification of investment revaluation BB EHKEEED
reserve upon impairment of available-for ~ HERRAE(ERHEL
sale financial assets EEipr] - = 2,383 - = = 2,383
Exchange difference arising from AEE-FHERAELZE
an associate during the year HEE (Mize)
(Note 16) - - - - (210) - (210)
- - 31,301 - (210) - 31,09
Total comprehensive income FEERANRLE
for the year - - 31,301 - (210) (23974 17
Issue of shares BIRG 570 83,790 = = = = 84,360
Shares issued in acquisition of investment ~ WEERERE{TR R 24 6,219 = = = - 6,303
Share issue expenses RipETES - (429) - - - = (429
At 31 March 2016 R=E-~E=A=1+-H 8937 354,658 38,960 12341 (163) (239,389) 286,418
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEREER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—F—+&=A=+—HILFE

Investment Share
Share Share  revaluation option  Exchange Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
REEf BRE

BEx  RAEE i RE ELRE  RiEE b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT T THL T T THL
(Note 21) (Note 22) (Note 22) (Note 22) (Note 22)

(Wak21) (W2 (W&22) (WE2) (&)

At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 RZB-RAEZA=+-HR

—E-xEMA-H 8,937 354,658 38,960 123,411 (163) (239,385) 286,418
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - - (14,707) (14,707)
Other comprehensive income EthzElE
Change in fair value of HERBEEL
available-for-sale financial assets ATEES - - (1,815) - - - (1,815)

Reclassification of investment revaluation & 8 ] (& B & E fF it
reserve upon impairment of availablefor- BRI EEEHEZ

sale financial assets EE i - - (578) - - - (578)
Exchange difference arising from an AEE-—FHERFAELZE

associate during the year (Note 16) AEE (HFE6) - - - - (362) - (362)

- - (2,393) - (362) - (2,755)

Total comprehensive income FEEZANREE

for the year - - (2,393) - (362) (14,707) (17,462)
Repurchase and cancellation of B REHRR

shares (Note 21(c) (H21(0) (115 (11,026) - - - - (11,141)
At 31 March 2017 BR=E-t£=A=t-AH 8,822 343,632 36,567 123,411 (525) (254,092) 257,815
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
Bt % THET T T
Cash flows from operating activities REREXBRERE
Loss before income tax expense FRET15 %1 7 < B BT 48 (14,707) (23,974)
Adjustments for: HTHEIBEL TR
Depreciation e 14 417 295
Net realised (gain)/loss on disposals of HERAFEGFAE
fair value of financial assets at fair value BaEB B EE
through profit or loss AFHEZE IR
(W) /B 18% 5 (2,128) 455
Interest income FEWA 7 (600) (602)
Bank interest income RITAIEHA 7 (85) (197)
Change in fair value of financial assets at BAFESAERZ
fair value through profit or loss BRIE TS E E
N EEE 660 (11,687)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEMBEE
financial assets BIEE R 1,988 17,670
Operating loss before working capital EEESBHAIZ
changes REFH (14,455) (18,040)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BEZRATEFAL
through profit or loss BREE Mg EE (99,533) (38,395)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets as 1 & & A EF AL
fair value through profit or loss SRR B EEL
PSR 70,922 40,522
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables, Hi W FIE 25
deposits and prepayments NIERRIE
(48hn) /m (296) 29,804
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and B RIBE N EFER
accrued charges Om4) /&0 (567) 1,291
Cash (used in)/generated from B (FifE) /i8R €
operations (43,929) 15,182
Interest received 2 W& 85 197
Net cash (used in)/generated from LXK (FTFE) /s
operating activities BEFHE (43,844) 15,379
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

T _\éIﬁrﬁsﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—F—+&=A=+—HILFE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T-RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt % THET FAT
Cash flows from investing activities RERETHZHERE
Purchases of available-for-sale BEAHEVBEE
financial assets (20,000) (12,000)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment &Y% - KFE k& HE 14 (57) (689)
Net cash used in investing activities REEERERSFHE (20,057) (12,689)
Cash flows from financing activities REMETHZRERE
Proceeds from issuing of shares BATR D TS 5I8 - 84,360
Share issuing expenses paid ERROEFETHE - (429)
Repurchase of shares A (11,141) =
Net cash generated from financing METHAEREFHE
activities (11,141) 83,931
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HERESEEY
cash equivalents #Bm CRD) B8 (75,042) 86,621
Cash and cash equivalents at FHNRERASZEEY
beginning of year 88,814 2,193
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRRERREZEY 13,772 88,814
Bank balances RITETF 13,772 38,726
Fixed deposits TEHTF R - 50,088
Bank and cash balances RITRBEET 13,772 88,814
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Investment Development Limited (“the Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 25 March 1998 and was de-registered
on 11 March 2011 and was registered by way of continuation
as an exempted company in Bermuda on 2 March 2011. The
Company's shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect
from 12 December 2000. Its registered office is located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda
and its principal office in Hong Kong is located at Suites 2706-
2707, 27/F., Everbright Centre, 108 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding
for medium to long-term capital appreciation purposes, and
investment in listed and unlisted securities. The principal
activities of the Company's subsidiaries are set out in note 15

to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—F—+&=A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(a) Adoption of new/revised to HKFRSs - first

66

effective on 1 April 2016

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14

The adoption of these amendments has no material

Annual Improvements 2012-
2014 Cycle

Disclosure Initiative

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Investment Entities:
Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Accounting for Acquisitions
of Interests in
Joint Operations

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group's financial statements, have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative'

Amendments to Recognition of Deferred

HKAS 12 Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses'
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets

HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and

HKAS 28 its Associate or Joint
Venture®
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers?

Amendments to Revenue from Contracts with

HKFRS 15 Customers (Clarifications
to HKFRS 15)?
HKFRS 16 Leases®
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2014-

2016 Cycle*

2. HMEEMBREED ([FEMBER
HER) ()

(b)

BREME R RERZHETRETE

BB EER
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AREMAFRERAREM B REREH
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BB G ERIETR
ZIER]

R g ER
FI2HRZER]

BB RELER
E

BRI RERER
FI0RRBEER
AR F 285 2 B FT

BB 5w E 2R
21557

B BB TSR E 2R
155 2 B7]

BRI RERER
F165%

BAMBRELER
(f&%7)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—F—+&=A=+—HILFE

2.

68

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective (continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017 and 1 January 2018

B The amendments were originally intended to be effective
for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
effective date has now been deferred/removed. Early
application of the amendments of the amendments
continue to be permitted.

Amendments to HKAS 7 — Disclosure Initiative
The amendments introduce an additional disclosure
that will enable users of financial statements to evaluate

changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

Amendments to HKAS 12 — Recognition of Deferred
Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

The amendments relate to the recognition of
deferred tax assets and clarify some of the necessary
considerations, including how to account for deferred
tax assets related to debt instruments measured of fair

value.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows (the business model test) and
that have contractual terms that give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash flow
characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised
cost. Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash
flow characteristics test are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") if
the objective of the entity’s business model is both to
hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell
the financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable
election at initial recognition to measure equity
instruments that are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All
other debt and equity instruments are measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new
general hedge accounting requirements to allow entities
to better reflect their risk management activities in

financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities designated
at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS
39 for derecognition of financial assets and financial

liabilities.
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2.

70

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale
or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture
The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to
be recognised when an entity sells or contributes assets
to its associate or joint venture. When the transaction
involves a business the gain or loss is recognised in full,
conversely when the transaction involves assets that do
not constitute a business the gain or loss is recognised
only to the extent of the unrelated investors' interests in

the joint venture or associate.
HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS
18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and

related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step approach

to revenue recognition:
. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in

the contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(continued)

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when each

performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative

disclosures related to revenue.

The directors anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may have an impact on the
amounts reported on revenue as the timing of revenue
recognition may be affected by the new standard,
and more disclosures relating to revenue is required.
Currently, the directors are in the midst of assessing the
financial impact of the application of HKFRS 15 and a
reasonable estimate of the effect will be available once

the detailed review is completed.

Amendments HKFRS 15 - Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations; application of
principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual property;

and transition requirements.
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2.

72

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 - Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations,
introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for
all leases with a term of more 12 months, unless the
underlying asset is of low value. Specifically, under
HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-
use asset representing its right to use the underlying
leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a
lessee should recognise depreciation of the right-of-use
asset and interest on the lease liability, and also classifies
cash repayments of the lease liability into a principal
portion and an interest portion and presents them in
the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset
and the lease liability are initially measured on a present
value basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable
lease payments and also includes payments to be made
in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise an option to extend the lease, or to exercise an
option to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment
is significantly different from the lessee accounting for
leases that are classified as operating leases under the
predecessor standard, HKAS 17.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 - Leases (continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or
finance leases, and to account for those two types of

leases differently.

As at 31 March 2017, the amount of operating
lease commitment of the Group was approximately
HK$603,000 as disclosed in note 27. The directors of
the Company do not expect the adoption of HKFRS
16 would result in significant impact on the Company’s
financial performance but it is expected that certain
portion of these lease commitments will be required to
be recognised in the statement of financial position as

right-to-use assets and lease liabilities.

The directors are currently assessing the potential
impact of these pronouncements, and they are not yet in
a position to state whether these new pronouncements
will result in substantial changes to the Group's

accounting policies and financial statements.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations and the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing

of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).
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3.

74

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at
fair values as explained in the accounting policies set

out in note 4 below.

(c) Functional and presentation currency
The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"). Each entity in the Group
maintains its books and record in its own functional

currency. The functional currency of the Company is
HK$.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

(a) Business combination and basis of
consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“the Group"”). Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the

loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates of
acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other

members of the Group.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair
value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interests that
represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which

case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (@ maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition
date. All other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability are

recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

76

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Contingent consideration balances arising from business
combinations whose acquisition dates preceded 1
January 2010 (i.e. the date the Group first applied
HKFRS 3 (2008)) have been accounted for in accordance
with the transition requirements in the standard. Such
balances are not adjusted upon first application of the
standard. Subsequent revisions to estimates of such
consideration are treated as adjustments to the cost of
these business combinations and are recognised as part

of goodwill.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interest and the non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant assets or

liabilities were disposed of.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (1) power over the investee, (2) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee, and (3) the
ability to use its power to affect those variable returns.
Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these

elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend

received and receivable.
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4.

78

— S

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor a joint venture. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but not control or joint control
over those policies. Associates are accounted for using
the equity method whereby they are initially recognised
at cost and thereafter, their carrying amount are
adjusted for the Group's share of the post-acquisition
change in the associates’ net assets except that losses
in excess of the Group's interest in the associate are not
recognised unless there is an obligation to make good

those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors' interests in the associate.
The investor's share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against

the carrying value of the associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate and the
entire carrying amount of the investment is subject to
impairment test, by comparing the carrying amount with
its recoverable amount, which is higher of value in use

and fair value less costs to sell.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in associates are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any. The results of associates are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends

received and receivable during the year.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the

financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. The useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of

the lease term or 4 years

Furniture and fixture 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 5 years
Motor vehicle 5 years

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s

estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in

profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E2—F—+&=A=+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(e) Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and

rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases are

classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Lease incentives received

are recognised as an integrated part of the total rental

expenses over the terms of the lease.

(f) Financial instruments
(i) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for
which the asset was acquired. Financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and all other financial
assets are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets. Regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase
or sale of a financial asset under a contract whose
terms require delivery of the asset within the
time frame established generally by regulation or

convention in the marketplace concerned.
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China Investment Development Limited o Bl & & AR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)  Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
These assets include financial assets held for
trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments or financial guarantee

contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the
cash flows or it is clear that separation of the
embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss if the following criteria are met: (i) the
designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or recognising
gains or losses on them on a different basis; (i)
the assets are part of a group of financial assets
which is managed and its performance evaluated
on a fair value basis according to a documented
management strategy; or (iii) the financial asset
contains an embedded derivative that would need

to be separately recorded.
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4.

82

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in

profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. They incorporate other
types of contractual monetary asset. Subsequent
to initial recognition, they are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any

identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
that are designated as available-for-sale or are
not included in other categories of financial
assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
assets are carried at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary

instruments, which are recognised in profit or loss.
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China Investment Development Limited o Bl & 2 A R A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRREE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)  Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence
that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset
is impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset and that event has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of

impairment may include:
o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

o a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

o granting concession to a debtor because of

debtor’s financial difficulty;

o a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in equity investment

below its cost; and

o it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation.
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4.

84

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
For Loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When
any part of financial asset is determined as
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance

account for the relevant financial asset.

For Available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes
objective evidence of impairment, the amount of
the loss is removed from equity and recognised in

profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale
debt investments are subsequently reversed in
profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment

loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any
increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment

loss is recognised in other comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investment that is
carried at cost, the amount of impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial

asset. Such impairment loss is not reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRREE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)  Financial instruments (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortisation
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of

directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
other payables and accrued charge, other
borrowing and amount due to directors and
subsidiaries are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is

recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as

through the amortisation process.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Company
that contain both the liability and conversion
option components are classified separately into
respective items on initial recognition. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity

instruments is an equity instrument.
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4.

86

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (continued)

(iv)

Convertible bonds (continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest rate of similar non-convertible
debts. The difference between the gross proceeds
of the issue of the convertible bonds and the
fair value assigned to the liability component,
representing the conversion option for the holder
to convert the bonds into equity, is included in

convertible bonds equity reserve.

In subsequent periods, the liability component
of convertible bonds is carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The
conversion option classified as equity will remain
in the convertible bonds equity reserve until the
conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance stated in the convertible bonds equity
reserve will be transferred to share premium.
Where the conversion option remains unexercised
at the maturity date, the balance stated in
the convertible bonds equity reserve will be
released to accumulated losses. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or

expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
conversion option components in proportion to
the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the conversion option component
are recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs
relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability component
and are amortised over the lives of the convertible

bonds using the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)  Financial instruments (continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a

shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is

discharged, cancelled or expires.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Financial instruments (continued)
(vii) Derecognition (continued)

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole
or in part as a result of renegotiating the terms
of that liability, the equity instruments issued
are the consideration paid and are recognised
initially and measured at their fair value on
the date the financial liability or part thereof
is extinguished. If the fair value of the equity
instruments issued cannot be reliably measured,
the equity instruments are measured to reflect the
fair value of the financial liability extinguished. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability or part thereof extinguished and
the consideration paid is recognised in profit or

loss for the year.

(g) Revenue recognition

Interest income is accrued on a timely basis on the

principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

(h) Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and

deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated

using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted at the end of reporting period.
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e M HRREE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates appropriate to the expected manner
in which the carrying amount of the asset or liability
is realised or settled and that have been enacted or

substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in measuring
deferred tax amount is when an investment property
is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment
Property”. Unless the presumption is rebutted, the
deferred tax amounts on these investment properties
are measured using the tax rates that would apply on
sale of these investment properties at their carrying
amounts at the reporting date. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than through

sale.
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4.

90

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also

recognised in other comprehensive income.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services that are vested at
the date of grant, the fair value of the share options
granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss with
a corresponding increase in the share option reserve

within equity.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to

accumulated profit or loss.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists

or may have decreased:
o Property, plant and equipment; and
o Investment in subsidiaries and associate

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs to sell and value in use) of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised

as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.
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4.

92

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(k) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of
the cost of those assets. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on those assets is deducted from borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

are incurred.

() Provisions

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,

which will probably result in an outflow of economic

benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

(m) Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person's

family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is @ member of key management personnel

of the Group or the Company's parent.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Related parties (continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is

related to the others).

(i) ~ One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the

other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v}  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or

of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
Y, y group

which it is a part, provides key management

personnel services to the Group or to the

Group's parent.

4. ERSHBEME &)

(m) BEAL(E)
7 & THMERGEM - IR

(b)

SEBFHE:
0) %A%EKEEEH EI

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)
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BARE) -
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RARAEDRE HA—F
RS EE T A B AR 2 B
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ale
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B ME—BEAZS
=T ERZBERE-
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BE 2 BRI B R AR
Z BB AR A E & o
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=
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(m) Related parties (continued)
Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity and include:

(i) that person's children and spouse or domestic

partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse

or domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The key assumptions concerning the future and other sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of reporting period that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are discussed below.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment
over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account
their estimated residual values, using the straight line method.
The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’ estimate of
the periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of the Group's property, plant and
equipment. The residual values reflect the directors’ estimated
amount that the Group would currently obtain from disposal
of the asset, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal,
if the assets were already of the age and in the condition

expected at the end of its useful life.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The Group's provision policy for bad and doubtful debts is
based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis
of accounts and on management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
customer. If the financial conditions of customers of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability

to make payments, additional allowance may be required.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses impairment at each reporting date by
evaluating conditions specific to the Group that may lead to
impairment of assets. Where an impairment trigger exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. Value-in-
use calculations performed in assessing recoverable amounts
incorporate a number of key estimates and assumptions
about future events, which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results. In making
these key estimates and judgements, the directors take
into consideration assumptions that are mainly based on
market condition existing at the reporting date and regularly
compared to actual market data and actual transactions
entered into by the Group.
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96

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or
prolonged decline in fair value below carrying value is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
Judgement is required when determining whether a decline
in fair value has been significant or prolonged. In making this
judgement, the management of the Group takes into account
factors such as industry and sector performance and financial

information regarding the investees.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An operating segment is a component of the Group that is
engaged in business activities from which the Group may
earn revenue and incur expenses, and is identified on the
basis of the internal management reporting information that
is provided to and regularly reviewed by the Group's chief
operating decision maker in order to allocate resources and
assess performance of the segment. For the years ended
31 March 2017 and 2016, the information reported to the
executive directors, who are the chief operating decision
makers for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment
of performance, do not contain profit or loss information of
each business line or geographical area and the executive
directors reviewed the financial result of the Group as a whole
reported under HKFRSs. Therefore, the executive directors
have determined that the Group has only one single business
component/reportable segment as the Group is only engaged
in investment holding. The executive directors allocate
resources and assess performance on an aggregated basis.

Accordingly, no operating segment is presented.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.
The following table provides an analysis of the Group's
revenue and non-current assets including property, plant and
equipment and interest in an associate (i.e. “specified non-
current assets”) by geographical locations, determined based
on physical location of the assets or location of operations in

case of interest in an associate, is as follows:

DEER (@)
TREHRREEBERUEREK L EMENL
(MBR—REE AR w) MEEEME
BN ARBRERIFRDEE (BEME
B Mkt A RN — R E AR 2 s (D [
EIRRBEE]) ) 2T :

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMPREF 2z REERBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—F-tf ZTF% ZB-tf ZTF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET THET TET
Hong Kong (place of domicile) BF (EEME) 600 602 755 1,115
Other regions of the People's hEARANE
Republic of China (the “PRC") ([REL]) EAftbm - = 5,512 5,874
600 602 6,267 6,989
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7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 7. WHERHEMBA
2017 2016
—E—tF T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&TT
Revenue: Wz
Interest income from financial assets at fair XA F(EFT AEEREIE
value through profit or loss %A E 2 FEHA 600 602
Other income: E A A
Bank interest income ER1TH BUR A 85 197
Others Efth 2 60
Dividend income &% 2 A 174 18
Exchange gain B 5, W 2 1 3
262 278
Total revenue and other income W g N H AU A 4R RE 862 880
The Group's revenue represents interest income from REEZ W EATRRES 2 A B WA R
convertible bonds. No other source of income contributed to T—+tFERZFT—RNF HUEEMPARR
the Group's revenue for both 2017 and 2016. RN B R Y A o
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2016: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits for the year. Overseas
tax is calculated at the rates applicable in the respective
jurisdictions. No provision for income tax expense is required
since the Group has no assessable profits either arising from
Hong Kong or other jurisdictions during the year (2016: Nil).

8. FEBiAxX
BATIST TR ANF E bt ERT R A2 16.5%
(ZZ—RF 16.5% )51 H < BHMIIAIRE 7
FERERMEGTE AR AEBNAFEEIL
R BB REMAERRR 2 ERBRF W
BAELMERAXEEB (ZT—RF &) -

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the REERISHAX RGESER KA 2 E S
loss before income tax expense per consolidated statement of KABRFAEBFAZATEE 2 HRAT
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:
2017 2016
—E2—tF b ANCS
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHBT
Loss before income tax expense BRFT1S B X Bl ES 18 (14,707) (23,974)
Tax calculated at the domestic income }§$f@}5ﬁ/5 W E16.5%
tax rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) R RF 165% ) HE
Z%RIE (2,427) (3,956)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TAIMBRAX 2 BT E
for tax purpose 365 2,928
Tax effect of revenue not taxable BARDW S 2 HETE
for tax purpose (152) (237)
Tax effect on temporary differences AEREREZHE LGB E
not recognised 56 (30)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised NERWIAEEZ R E 2,158 1,295
Income tax expense FRgBiF - -
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8.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

No deferred tax asset or liability has been recorded on
temporary differences of approximately HK$3,715,000 (2016:
approximately HK$3,376,000) has been made in the financial
statements as the tax effect of the temporary difference is

immaterial to the Group.

At the end of reporting period, the Group had unused tax
losses of approximately HK$96,417,000 (2016: approximately
HK$83,344,000) available for offset against future profits that
may be carried forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the unused tax losses due to

unpredictability of future profit streams.

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Loss before income tax expense is stated after charging the

FriSBipix (&)
MRERERZ BBV EUAEEME Y
TER I8 F B R AT 2 EN
3,715,000/ 7T ( =& —754F : 493,376,000/ 7T )
BERTERAAERAR-

RBEHAR - AEEERGATEEEL
96,417,000/ 7t ( = & — /< 4F © 983,344,000/
7o) - AR R AR B - B ] EPR B A4S o |
A TR AR A s A = - A B ARE AR
HEEEREERIEEE -

BRAT1SHBA <A1 E 1R
P FT1S B8 2 AT AS R4S 300 T 3115 IR R 518K -

following:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Staff costs 8 TR
Salaries e 3,579 4,408
Provident fund contributions R 1E & K 94 79
Total staff costs excluding directors’ BT A4EER
remunerations (T"BREEEM:) 3,673 4,487
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BN B 2 488 425
Depreciation e 417 295
Directors’ remuneration (note 13) EE8E (BI5E13) 3,787 2,921
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEMBEEY
financial assets A E 1A 1,988 17,670
Investment manager's fee REKEER 720 720
Rent and rates e KE=w 2,561 2,090
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11.

12.

e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

DIVIDENDS 10. BE
The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend EETEEMEBE T —+F=A=+—Hit

for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: Nil).

FERBEARE (ZF—RF &)

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO 1. XAFEEABERFERE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Loss attributable to shareholders includes an amount of BREEBEEEBEENARE MK REA
approximately HK$11,901,000 (2016: HK$19,989,000) which has IR A& E4911,901,000 L (ZF — /N F:
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company. 19,989,000 7T ) Z FRIE °

LOSS PER SHARE 12. BREE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share RARERERTE ARGEBRERREEE
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is B AT 8RS

based on the following data:

2017 2016
—E—tF = ANCS
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHTT
Loss =]
Loss for the year attributable to owners of ARG EEREARREEEE
the Company for the purposes of ZARNEEB AEBEREE
basic and diluted loss per share &8 (14,707) (23,974)

Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EEBRERREEEE
shares for the purposes of basic and 2 & RN HE T 8
diluted loss per share 8,853,695,047 8,616,470,823
Note: B3 -
(a) No diluted loss per share has been presented as the potential (a) BAREARITEZEREMP R 2 BEEB
ordinary share in respect of outstanding share options is anti- AP 5% P (B S 2 A R M U I 2

dilutive for both years.

5| i B E B 1R o
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13. DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 13.

INDIVIDUALS' EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments
Directors’ emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant
to Section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
(Cap. 622) and the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) are

ESkTEBEHFALTZHE

(@) EE=M£
RIEE B A BMEF] (5622F ) 538315 K&
AR (BBESFZER) B (55622G
B)TUBBZAFEESHMESNT

as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Fees we
Executive directors HITES 720 375
Non-executive directors ERITES 240 240
Independent non-executive directors B IEHITE SR 720 720
1,680 1,335
Basic salaries and other benefits EAFH® K EMEF 2,089 1,568
Contributions to retirement RRAEFET B
benefit scheme 18 18
3,787 2,921

No directors had waived any emoluments and no
emoluments were paid to the directors as inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation

for loss of office during the year (2016: Nil).
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13. DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

13. EEREEBEFALTZHME @)

INDIVIDUALS' EMOLUMENTS (continued))

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (continued) (@) EEM< (&)
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the six EfNSENARE (ZE—REF:RE)E
(2016: six) directors are as follows: EZMenT
2017
—E—tF
Salaries  Contribution
and other to retirement
Fees benefits scheme Total
HeR Efe
ne Hi 7 HE R #@gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THERT THERT TET
Executive directors HTES
Chan Cheong Yee BRER 360 - - 360
Zhang Xuming KB EA 360 1,585 18 1,963
Non-executive director FHTES
Chen Yin Rl 240 504 - 744
Independent non- BIFHTES
executive directors
Fong Wo, Felix FHH 240 - - 240
Leung Chi Kong 2R 240 - - 240
Leung Wing Kin R 240 - - 240
1,680 2,089 18 3,787
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13. DIRECTORS' AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

13. EEREEBEFALTZHME @)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (@) EEM< (&)
2016
ZERE
Contribution
Salaries and  to retirement  Share-based
Fees other benefits scheme payment Total
ek R’INE
ik Hev @A EIEHR RHAR B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL THEL FHL THL FHEL
Executive directors YTES
Chan Cheong Yee RE% 360 - - - 360
Zhang Xuming R SBEA 15 1,484 18 - 1517
Non-executive director FHTES
Chen Yin Al 240 84 - - 324
Independent non- BUFGTES
executive directors
Fong Wo, Felix A 240 - - - 240
Leung Chi Kong 2R 240 - - - 240
Leung Wing Kin RRE 240 - - - 240
1,33 1,568 18 - 2921
The number of directors whose remuneration fell within MENFUATEHE ZES AT
the following band is follow:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$nil to HK$1,000,000 T % 7T £ 1,000,000/ 7T 5 5
HK$1,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 1,000,001/ 7T 23,000,000/ 7T 1 1
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

INDIVIDUALS' EMOLUMENTS (continued))

(b)

Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
(2016: five) (which include 3 director (2016: 2)) were as
follows:

(b)

13. EEREEBEFALTZHME @)

IEEEFALTZHME

& (Z2—AE AR BReFALT (B
REE=R(ZE—AF MB)EF)Z
B an T

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FAETT

Basic salaries and other benefits EARFH e R EMET] 4,046 3,989
Contributions to retirement RRAEFIFT S50

benefit scheme 49 52

4,095 4,041

The number of the five highest paid individuals whose

remuneration fell within the following band is as follow:

MENTFUTHEzHEEESHAL
ZFEHMT:

2017 2016

—2—tF T AF

HK$nil to HK$1,000,000 = 7T 2 1,000,0008 7T 4 E
HK$1,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 1,000,0017% 7T % 3,000,0007% 7T 1

There was no arrangement under which any of the
five (2016: five) highest paid employees had waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the highest paid employees as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as

compensation for loss of office.

RAFE BERAR(ZF—RF R
) REFHEEEPEMALHEXRE
MEEAIE T E ke

RAFE AEEYEATAESHRS
iR B SXNEABE - (F RSB E AR
SENMAREE R 2 20 - S ERBE
BE
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. N¥E - BRERZE
Leasehold Furniture, Motor Computer
improvements  equipment Vehicle equipment Total
HEWEEE HARRE RE SHRE # 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TERT TEL TEL
At 1 April 2015 R-ZZE-EFEMA—H
Cost A 4,246 45 476 38 4,805
Accumulated depreciation 2EHE (3,930) (28) (1) (15) (4,084)
Net carrying amount REHE 316 17 365 23 721
Year ended 31 March 2016 HE-2-RE
SAZt-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount HERE S E 316 17 365 23 721
Additions WE 15 44 618 12 689
Depreciation & (161) ¢ (116) 9 (295)
Closing net carrying amount HARREEE 170 52 867 26 1,115
At 31 March 2016 and RZB-RE=ZA=+-H
1 April 2016 R=E-XEMA—H
Cost 5% 4,261 89 1,094 50 5,494
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (4,091) (37) (227) (24) (4,379
Net carrying amount REFE 170 52 867 26 1,115
Year ended 31 March 2017 BE-Z2-tf
ZA=t-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount AR (E 170 52 867 26 1,115
Additions WE - 23 - 34 57
Depreciation & (170) (15) (220) (12) #17)
Closing net carrying amount HRERE S E - 60 647 48 755
At 31 March 2017 R=Z—+#=A=1-H
Cost AR 4,261 112 1,094 84 5,551
Accumulated depreciation Z:tHE (4,261) (52) (447) (36) (4,796)
Net carrying amount REFE - 60 647 48 755
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The particulars of the Company's subsidiaries as at 31 March

2017 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

Issues and
fully paid

RMBARZRE

RRARIZIMBRARIR - TE—tF=A=+—H

ZEBIMT

Attributable equity
interests held by

Name operation share capital the Company Principal activities
M, BETR PN
28 EEMH BRRA P45 P 41 PR AEE FRER
Direct Indirect
H#E ) 4
China Equity Assets Holdings Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Investment holding
Limited
TEEEEESEEGRAR B 1787 REER
Master Smooth Investment Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Development Limited
BRRERRARLDA Bt BT REER
Eternal Fame Industrial Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
KEEBEEBRAT & 10,0007 7T BB
Able Surplus Corporation Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited
BRNXARRAA i 10,0007 7T REEK
Smart Access Capital Limited BVI/Hong Kong Us$100 100% - Investment holding
EBGERESE/ 100% 7T REER
BE
Urban Thrive Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$50,000 100% - Investment holding
EBRRER/ 50,0003 7T AR
BB
Moonglory International BVI/Hong Kong US$50,000 100% -  Investment holding
Properties Limited
EBGERESE/ 50,000% 7T REER
BE
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #==%

— S

15. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The particulars of the Company's subsidiaries as at 31 March

2017 are as follows: (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

Issues and
fully paid

15. RMIBRARIZRE (&)
ARAIZHBRARKR-E
TEBEWTN: (&)

Attributable equity
interests held by

—+F=A=+—H

Name operation share capital the Company Principal activities
MR, BETR PN
=1 SEME HERRE Fir 5 P 41 PR AEE FTRER
Direct Indirect
BH#E ) 4
Giant Treasure Global Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$1 100% - Dormant
EBGERESE/ 1ETT EEXH
BE
Ray Wealth Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Dormant
EFARRAA BE BT BEEER
Global Qasis Corporation Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Dormant
Limited
HEEZHERRAR B BT EEXH
Green Rhythm Limited Hong Kong N/A 100% - Dormant
DEYES ] FN Bt TiE EEXH
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding % BT A R R G R 3R 6 PO A n] By FRI 4B A A ]

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

16. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE R—XBE QAR ZER
2017 2016
—EB— ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Share of net assets of an associate DM —KEERR 2 EEFE 5,512 5,874
(@) Details of the Group's associate at 31 March 2017 are as (@ AEBZBMEATR_ZT—LtF=A
follows: =T —HZFBEET:
Percentage
Place of Issued and fully of equity  Proportion of
incorporation/ paid registered held by voting  Principal
Name of associate operation capital the Group power activity
T BRITREBRE  FAEERSE
AN EEME ERE- N BmEDL RERLH FEEHR
Bonicast Construction Material ~ People's Republic of Registered 49% 20%  Trading of
(Beijing) Co., Ltd (“Bonicast”) China (“PRC") RMB10,000,000 (note) construction
materials
SREFRENMH (R) hEE AR AME Gl 49% 0% EHNES
BRRAN ([ERER]) (ThE) A #%10,000,0007 (E)

Note: The Group is able to exercise significant influence over
Bonicast because it has the power to appoint one out
of five directors of that company under the articles of
association of that company.

B

AEBERPEGBERTREAT
21 RARAKEERIREZA
AABERANEEZARARE
EHEP—F-
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E2—F—+&=A=+—HILFE

16. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 16.

Summarised financial information in respect of Bonicast, (b)

which is a material associate to the Group is set out

below:

R—BE QT 2 s ()

AEBETIE2HRENREBREECUBKE

FtE# 0T :

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
As at 31 March R=A=+—H
Current assets MENE E 11,279 12,021
Non-current assets FERBEE - =
Current liabilities mElaE (31) (33)
Net assets BEFE 11,248 11,988
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest —H#RNEBRZHE L a]Z
in the associate: a1k
Proportion of the Group's ownership ~ ZN52 B 2 %5 #E L ] 49% 49%
Group's share of net assets of the REBHEZBEREZ
assets of the associate BEFE 5,512 5,874
Carrying amount of the associate BtE A EIBREE 5,512 5,874
Included in the above amounts are: T AU _EZ5E -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEFED - 1
Current financial liabilities mEN AR
(excluding trade and (TEREFHEMNFIER
other payables) H i fE T3R8 ) - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 16.

(b)

e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

Summarised financial information in respect of Bonicast, (b)

which is a material associate to the Group is set out

below: (continued)

R—RBE QAR 2= (&)
FEEMEERLARNGBEEIHBE
HEZRIIMT : (&)

2017 2016
—E—tF —TRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
Year ended 31 March BZ=A=+—HILEE
Revenue Wz - 1,500
Loss from operation PNEFSES vl = - =
Total comprehensive income 2S48 58 - (428)
Group's share of result of AEEDE—FRBERRZ
an associate e - -
Group's share of total AEEDE—REERE Z
comprehensive income of HEW =BT
an associate - (210)

Included in the above amounts are: T AU _LZFE -

Depreciation and amortisation PrEREH - =
Interest income FEHA - =
Income tax expense FT1S B X - -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E2—F—+&=A=+—HILFE

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 17. AIHENKEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —TRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT
Unlisted equity securities in PRC, at cost AR 3E_E T IR AN RS 55 » H2 R AR 92,185 72,185
Fair value adjustment NEFEE 16,909 21,290
109,094 93,475
Particulars of investments in unlisted equity securities held by BIE ETRANENERBEZAEENR T —+
the Group as at 31 March 2017 and 2016 disclosed pursuant ERZTE-RF=ZHA=T—BHFEELHRA
to Chapter 21 of Listing Rules are as follows: BEREFFBHOT :
Percentage of
Place of effective Accumulated
Name of investee companies  incorporation interest held At cost fair value adjustment Carrying value
FrisBE B
BEXRENAER HAMRIBE  EBEEIL BEA RADTERE REE

31/3/2017  31/3/2016  31/3/2017  31/3/2016  31/3/2017  31/3/2016
Sg-tf “TAF S¥-tF “FAF B-tF “FAF
=5 =5 =5 =5 =5 =5
=+-R =+-A =+-B =+-B =t+-A =+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT  THAT  THAR  TET  TER TR

Tianjin Bao Xin Ying Precious PRC 12.00% 6,590 6,590 (1,334) 578 5,256 7,168
Metals Management Limited
("Bao Xin") (note (i)

AREERRSBEERRRAR F
(rEz])) (FaEd))

GuangZhou Shi Da Jian PRC 11.59% 9,800 9,800 (2,581) (3,137) 7,219 6,663
Credit Guarantee Limited
("Da Jian") (note (iv))

BMNmEREAERERAR F
(F=g]) (Mv)

China Petroleum Bio-Energy Hong Kong 5.69% 24,400 24,400 33,858 36,415 58,258 60,815
Company Limited
(“Bio-Energy”) (note (v))

REBRENEERERAR BE

(TEmaeiR)) (Baw)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 17. ATHEMBEE (&)
(continued))

Percentage of

Place of effective Accumulated
Name of investee companies  incorporation interest held At cost fair value adjustment Carrying value
FRERR
BEXRENAER AMRIBE  EREIL BEA RAATERE FREE

31/3/2017  31/3/2016  31/3/2017  31/3/2016  31/3/2017  31/3/2016
—9-tf “T-AF “¥-tF “T-AF R-tF “FAF
=5 =5 =5 =5 =5 =5
=+-A =t-B =t-8 Z=t-8 =+-8 =t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FET  TET  TAR TR TAR  TER

Yenbo Gain Limited BVI 18.18% 13,092 13,092 2,151 1,967 15,243 15,059
("Yenbo Gain”) (note (vi))

BREMERAR ([REF])
(PRrEE(vi))

o

BAREE

Perfect Worth Investment BVI 5.00% 18,303 18,303 (15,187) (14,533) 3,116 3,770
Limited (“Perfect Worth”)
(note (vii))

Perfect Worth Investment
Limited ( [Perfect Worth |)
(P& (vi) )

o

BAREE

Golden Resources Asia Limited ~ BVI 14% 10,000 - (68) - 9,932 -
("Golden Resources”)
(note (viii))

Golden Resources Asia Limited ~ EEBE# RS
([Golden Resources |)

(Bt (viii) )

Huge Leader Investment BVI 18% 10,000 - 70
Development Limited
("Huge Leader") (note (ix))

10,070 -

Huge Leader Investment EBRRES
Development Limited
(THuge Leader )
(BfEGx))

92,185 72,185 16,909 21,290 109,094 93,475
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—F—+&=A=+—HILFE

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(continued))

Note:

(i)

The investments in Da Jian and Perfect Worth are measured
at fair value and classified as Level 3 fair value measurement.
The fair values of unlisted equity securities are determined
by reference to the valuation carried out by an external
independent valuer by using Guideline Publicly Traded
Company method with reference to similar listed companies
and adjusted to reflect the specific circumstance of the
investments. The significant unobservable inputs are as follows:

Da Jian and Perfect Worth are valued by a price-to-book
ratio multiple and indicated value per active customer of
comparable listed companies respectively. A discount was

17. ATHEMKEE (&)

GEE

(i)

MR iEGE K Perfect Worth 2 & TH LA R FEET
£ WHBAIMPAFEE - FELMRAE
H 2 NFETESEINEIE (G ERMEA
EWARESLAER 2 HEEE - ZEE
KREEU LT ARUHRBEZEREZ
FERE AR T H#ETT S 2 o B KT A R A2 ) A X
(N

#E 4 N Perfect Worth2) BIIZAI & LL &R _ER] A
RIZTMEEREHEMRSEREE 2 RNE
ETHE B REZEIELMIEERZT

applied to reflect the lack of marketability of the unlisted 5 B T N ARG 2R o
investments.
Da Jian Perfect Worth
=g Perfect Worth
Lack of marketability discount rate = % e R IR R 25% 30%

If the lack of marketability discount rate was 5% higher/lower
while all other variables were held constant, the carrying
amount of the investments in Da Jian and Perfect Worth
would decrease/increase by approximately HK$120,000 (2016:
HK$83,000) and HK$67,000 (2016: HK$47,000) respectively.

The investment in Bio-Energy, Yenbo Gain, Golden
Resources and Huge Leader are measured at fair value and
classified as Level 3 fair value measurement. The fair value of
Bio-Energy, Yenbo Gain, Golden Resources and Huge Leader
are determined by reference to the valuation carried out by an
external independent valuer by using Discounted Cash Flow
method. The significant unobservable inputs are as follows:

iR = ISR BNERRIR R EF T EK5% M
i b BB M T2 - IR EH K& Perfect
Worthz 1% & BREIE 18 5 BlR 2 1 41 49
120,0007% 7T ( == — 75 4F : 83,0007 70) &
67,00077C (=ZZ — 754 1 47,0007 7T) °

REMREIR - BE | - Golden Resources &
Huge Leaderz REURFEHE A H
BR3P AT EFE-EWEIR BEAN-
Golden Resources & Huge Leaderz A 1{&
T2 EZINEB T REMERRRR SR
SREH 2 HEEE - EAT A B H AR
T

Yenbo Golden Huge

Bio-Energy Gain Resources Leader

Golden Huge

EMEER B8R Resources Leader

Lack of marketability discount rate 2 5t B) 4 AE 38 & 30% 30% 25% 25%
Growth rate HR= 4%-86% 6%-137% 5%-17% 5%-16%
Gross profit margin ER= 58%-79% 37% 13% 17%
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

(continued)
Note: (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(vii)

(continued)

If the lack of marketability and control discount rates were
5% higher/lower while all other variables were held constant,
the carrying amount of the investments in Bio— Energy, Yenbo
Gain, Golden Resources and Huge Leader would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$1,248,000 (2016: HK$1,303,000),
HK$299,000 (2016: HK$251,000), HK$147,000 (2016: Nil) and
HK$149,000 (2016: Nil) respectively.

Bao Xin is a PRC established company and principally engaged
in the trading of precious metals and gold products and
investment advisory in Tianjin, the PRC.

The investment in Bao Xin is measured at fair value and
classified as Level 3 fair value measurement. The fair value of
Bao Xin is determined by reference to the valuation carried
out by an external independent valuer by using Asset Base
Approach.

If the net book value of Bao Xin was 5% higher/lower while
all other variables were held constant, the carrying amount
of the investments in Bao Xin would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$263,000 (2016: HK$358,000)

Da Jian is a PRC established company and principally
engaged in providing credit guarantee service in the PRC. The
acquisition was completed on 21 January 2014.

Bio-Energy is principally engaged in research, development
and promotion of biomass energy and other agricultural related
products. One of its subsidiaries has obtained the development
and operation right of a piece of land in Xinjiang Province, the
PRC, which is under construction and plantation of bio-oil crops
and shelter belt plants.

Yenbo Gain Limited is incorporated in BVI and principally
engaged in cultivation and research of the fine and new
varieties forest products together with the research and
promotion of product cultivation technology for producing
clean energy purposes.

Perfect Worth is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the business of online
distribution of footwear.

17. JHEMKEE &)

BaE: (&)

(ii)

(iii)

(vii)

(#)

s {50 2= T 353 7% B M & 2 1 4 2 B 3R =R
/TN ER5% + T BT £ B 18 4 35 & - Al
REYREIR - BEF| Golden Resources
Huge LeaderZ & BREIE 1 2 Bl /1%
HN#91,248,0007% 7T ( =ZF — 75 4F : 1,303,000
HIT) ~ 299,000 7T (= F — 754 : 251,000
FBIL) 1470008 L (Z T —RFEE) R
149,000/ 7 (=T —NFE &) »

BE S RRTBEKIZAR ERZRF
RENRFECBRECHREERRER
A AR ©

REBZRETNEATFENE X HEA3
BAFEFE - BEZATEDEZEINE
B hERMERAEEEWE L ZAEE

Eo

WESEEEFELA THS% MAE
HMBIEEETE ARBEE 2 IREAREE
1553 Bl 0,4 49263,0008 7T ( ZF—X
£ : 358,000/ 7T ) °

ERS—FKNTEKILZ AR TR
RBRHEERRRYE -ZRBERER-Z
—HE-AZ+—HBEK-

EMRREZRFEDE LRI EEYHE
BAE MRS REBEFHEE - TH T — KB
NEIBAEHBAER RS — it 2 BB
KSRz IEARBEEMERMEHED
VAR SRR 7 s A o

BENER DRIV B4R E S ML

TEREMARZ REES KA MmESRE - A
Ko PAEE 475 2 A8 IR 4 B AR IS BT 3 R
i

Perfect Worth Bt Bk A 7] B A A
FENSEHELEDHERFE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—F—+&=A=+—HILFE

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 17.

(continued)
Note: (continued)

(viii) Golden Resources is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the business of trading
of steel and related products. The acquisition was completed
on 11 August 2016 with the initial cost of HK$10,000,000 settled
by cash.

(ix)  Huge Leader is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the business of trading
of engineering materials. The acquisition was completed on 26
October 2016 with the initial cost of HK$10,000,000 settled by
cash.

The following is the analysis of fair value change of AFS

THEMBEE (4

BaE: (&)

(viii)

Golden Resources &% &= A &) - EH B
NAEZVEEHME RAAREEmE B - %
WEEBER=_TE—"FNA+—BZK ¥
275X 7510,000,0007%8 70 AR & 32 A+

Huge LeaderBiZ B1EMR A 7] - EMIE A A
FERETEMHEEER - ZWHEEER
—E—ARNE+AZ+RNARR PIEAA
10,000,0007%8 7T LA IR & 5+ ©

AT AAHENBEERBE_T—tFR_

financial assets that are measured at fair value for the years E-—RF=ZA=1T—BHILEFERATFEFEZ
ended 31 March 2017 and 2016: N EZE DI
Change in fair value during the
year ended 31 March
BE=A=t-HLFEZ
R EEE
2017 2016
—E—tF AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT
Unlisted equity securities issued by: HATRAIETZIELET
MR 5
— Bao Xin —E& (1,912) (2,920)
— Da Jian —ER 556 (754)
— Bio-Energy —HEEEIR (2,557) 32,904
— Yenbo Gain —HEF 184 (1,066)
— Perfect Worth —Perfect Worth (654) (14,533)
— Golden Resources —Golden Resources (68) =
— Huge Leader —Huge Leader 70 -
(4,381) 13,631
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 18. RAFEAZEZERE Z2MBEE
PROFIT OR LOSS

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Hong Kong listed equity securities, BB ETRAES
at market value (note (a)) EmE (iE@)) 41,855 12,080
Investments in convertible bonds, HE NI RRES
at fair value (note (b)) ZATE (Mt b)) 26,459 26,155
68,314 38,235
(@) Particulars of the Group's major investments of listed (@ WBELMRBENEREZAEENL =
equity securities held by the Group as at 31 March 2017 ZH+ERZZB-RF=ZHA=1+—HB#H
and 2016 disclosed pursuant to Chapter 21 of Listing BRZEZ FTRABAREFBOT

Rules are as follows:

2017 —E—+F
Accumulated
unrealised
Percentage gain/(loss)
Name of Number of of interest Market  arisingon  Change in
investee companies Note  shares held held Cost value revaluation  fair value
EftE%ER
EHES £
gD i,/
BXRENFER Wi EROHE BAL A miE (B8) 2AVEE
2017 2017
—E-tF =

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FRET TR TERT

China Galaxy Securities (i) 1,616,000 ordinary 0.0159% 11,435 11,587 152 152
Co., Limited (“CGS") share

BRI E SR ER A 1,616,0008% & &
((RERAES])

China Life Insurance Co. (ii) 300,000 ordinary 0.0011% 7,264 7,155 (109) (109)
Limited (“China Life") share

FEASRRIRHEB AR 300,000 & 47 %
([RBIAZE])
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

(a)

18. BAFEIFAEREREZMBEE

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) (&)
(continued) (@) (%)
2017 (continued) =EB—+tF(£F)
Accumulated
unrealised
Percentage gain/(loss)
Name of Number of of interest Market  arisingon  Change in
investee companies Note  shares held held Cost value revaluation  fair value
EfiEER
R RER
Pk W/
EZRENTAR W FAERGHE Bl B m{E (B#B) LATE2E
2017 2017
—E—+tF “E-tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TER
Shangdong Molong (iii) 1,958,800 ordinary 0.2455% 6,362 4,133 (2,229) (2,229)
Petroleum Machinery share
Co. Limited
(“Shangdong Molong”)
IR BB A mEmR N AR 1,958 8008k & &k
A ([LREE])
BYD Company Limited (iv) 81,000 ordinary 0.0030% 3,633 3,491 (142) (142)
("BYD Company”) share
iR HR AR 81,0008 & &R
(TteiRiAxt )
Haitong International (v) 636,000 ordinary 0.0119% 2,888 2,907 19 19
Securities Group Limited share
(“Haitong")
BREREFEEERAR 636,0008% & 8 A%
(Ig@])
Huadian Fuxin Energy (vi) 1,300,000 ordinary 0.0155% 2,245 2,262 17 17
Corporation Limited share
(“Huadian Fuxin")
EERNAERRNERAR 1,300,0008% & 7 i
([EFEEH])
APlus Group (vii) 3,300,000 ordinary 0.8250% 1,000 2,376 1,376 1,376
Holdings Limited share
(“A.Plus Group”)
EUERERAR AT 3,300,000 & i A&

([EEEE])
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #==%

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

e M HRRE

—tEF=A=t+—HLEFE

18. BAFEIFAEREREZMBEE

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued) (#&)
(@)  (continued) @ (&)
2016 —E-REF
Accumulated
unrealised
Percentage gain/(loss)
Name of Number of of interest Market  arisingon  Change in
investee companies shares held held Cost value  revaluation fair value
BfELYZ
st W&/
BXRERALH PR & 8 B A miE (B8) ATEE
2016 2016
—EAF —BRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TR FET FERT
CITIC Limited (“CITIC") 30,000 ordinary 0.0001% 482 354 (128) (44)
shares
FETERHBRE 30,0008 & @&
(TeR{E1)
Echo International 11,168,000 ordinary 1.3960% 4,846 11,726 6,880 6,880
Holdings Group Limited share
(“Echo International”)
= (EER) EREE 11,168,000 & @K
BRAR ([R2ER])
Notes: BT -

(i)

CGS was incorporated in PRC and its shares are listed
on Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (stock
code: 6881) and the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 601881). CGS is in the securities and brokerage
industry and its subsidiaries engage in provision of
comprehensive securities services including brokerage,
sales and trading as well as investment banking and
investment management. For the financial year ended
31 December 2016, the audited consolidated profit
attributable to equity holders of CGS was approximately
RMBS5, 185,407,000 with basic profit per share of RMB0.54.
No diluted earnings per share has been presented
for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 as
the Group had no potential ordinary shares in issue
during both years. As at 31 December 2016, its audited
consolidated net assets attributable to the Company
was approximately RMB9,302,000. No dividend received
during the year ended 31 March 2017.

(i) PR ESFRF R A H
RO REBE R AT ER (BMH R :
6881) R EBEHRR S AT (BRMHA
5% 1 601881) £ T o AR B 4R )] 7% 5 1t
EBHFRELITE MEMBLAFEA
WERELL %E&x% AR
TEREEEREHRAMBESRY -
HE-_Z—XR"E+= H +—HB1t
MEBRFEE FRBTELFERTE
ANEHEEZEEBNNBARE
5,185,407,0007T * R E A& F A A
REOS4TL - AR AEEREEZT

—NEFEE—E—RF+_-_A=+—H

IEFE A ED BEITBEL B
BERZMEAFEZSREER
FeR=—ZT—XRE+_A=+—8"
RABEMZARZRERITEEE
SFEL B ARKS,302,0007T - REE
—E—+E=f=+—HItEEHE
W B (] AR B
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—F—+&=A=+—HILFE

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(a)

(continued))

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(iii)

China Life was incorporated in PRC and the share its
shares listed on Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2628) and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 601628). China Life is in the
insurance industry, and it engages in provision of life,
annuities, accident and health insurance products
in China. For the financial year ended 31 December
2016, the audited consolidated profit attributable
to equity holders of China Life was approximately
RMB19,585,000,000 with basic and diluted profit per
share of RMBO0.66. As at 31 December 2016, its audited
consolidated net assets attributable to the Company
was approximately HK$3,265,000. No dividend received
during the year 31 March 2017.

Shangdong Molong was incorporated in PRC and its
shares are listed on Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (stock code: 568). Shangdong Molong is in
the oil and gas industry and its subsidiaries engage
in design, manufacture and sale of oil well pumping
machines, oil well sucker rods, oil well pumps, oil well
pipes, casing and other petroleum drilling and extraction
machinery accessories. For the financial year ended
31 December 2016, the audited consolidated profit
attributable to equity holders of Shangdong Molong
was RMB650,705,700 with basic and diluted profit per
share of RMBO0.77. As at 31 December 2016, its audited
consolidated net assets attributable to the Company was
RMB3,920,000. No dividend received during the year
ended 31 March 2017.
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e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(@) (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

BYD Company was incorporated in PRC and its shares
are listed on Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1211) and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 002594). BYD Company is in
the automobiles industry, and it engages in research,
development, manufacture and sale of rechargeable
batteries and photovoltaic business, automobiles and
related products, handset components and other
electronic products. For the financial year ended
31 December 2016, the audited consolidated profit
attributable to equity holders of BYD Company was
approximately RMB5,480,012,000 with basic and diluted
profit per share of RMB1.88. As at 31 December 2016,
its audited consolidated net assets attributable to the
Company was approximately RMB1,645,000. No dividend
was received during the year 31 March 2017.

Haitong was incorporated in Bermuda and its shares are
listed on Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 665). Haitong is in the financial industry,
and its subsidiaries engage in brokerage, provision of
nominee and custodian services, corporate advisory,
placing and underwriting, investment management,
financing, trading and market making activities,
structured products issuance and investment. For the
financial year ended 31 December 2016, the audited
consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of
Haitong was approximately HK$1,680,225,000 with
basic profit per share of HK$31.76 and diluted profit per
share of HK$31.18. As at 31 December 2016, its audited
consolidated net assets attributable to the Company
was approximately HK$1,428,000. No dividend received
during the year 31 March 2017.

18. BAFEFAEEREECHBEE
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@ (&)

ML : (47

(iv)  LbEE AR (D R B FE AR S 0 H AR
MREBE R ER (BRHARRE:
1211) R EEEHR 5 (BRHRE
002594) £ e th Zn AR A H )95
TE REZARREEBRAKE
HoREREEER FHRBERE
fthEFE AT FAZ - BiE R
E-BE-_TE—X"F+=ZA=+—
Bt BRFEE @R mESE
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E2—F—+&=A=+—HILFE

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(a)

(continued))

Notes: (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Huadian Fuxin was incorporated in PRC and its shares are
listed on Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(stock code: 816). Huadian Fuxin is in the energy industry
and its subsidiaries engage in generation and sale of
hydropower, wind power, coal-fired power, solar power,
natural gas-fired power and other clean power in the
PRC. For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the
audited consolidated profit attributable to equity holders
of Huadian Fuxin was approximately RMB2,594,110,168
with both basic and diluted profit per share of RMB0.31.
As at 31 December 2016, its audited consolidated net
assets attributable to the Company was approximately
RMB3,565,000. No dividend received during the year
ended 31 March 2017.

A.Plus Group was incorporated in Cayman Islands and
its shares are listed on Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange (stock code: 8251). A.Plus Group is in
the printing and packaging industry, and its subsidiaries
engage in provision of financial printing service in Hong
Kong mainly providing typesetting, design, translation,
printing and delivery services. For the financial year
ended 31 March 2016, the audited consolidated profit
attributable to equity holders of A.Plus Group was
approximately HK$13,386,000 with basic and diluted
profit per share of HK$0.0529. As at 31 March 2016,
its audited consolidated net assets attributable to the
Company was approximately HK$380,000. No dividend
received during the year 31 March 2017.

The fair values of the Group's investment in listed equity

securities are based on quoted market price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #==%

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b)

Particulars of investments in convertible bonds held
by the Group as at 31 March 2017 and 2016 disclosed

pursuant to Chapter 21 of Listing Rules are as follows:

18.

e M HRRE

—tEF=A=t+—HLEFE

BAVESAERZEECMBEE
(#)
b) RELTRENERB2AEER =
T LFER-B-AFZAZ+—AM
BRARTRRESFHBENT

Name of Place of Unlisted debt
investee companies incorporation securities, at cost Fair value adjustment Carrying value
FLEHEHRS
BEXRENAER AR 3L 4 B REAE AVERE REE
31/3/2017 31/3/2016 31/3/2017 31/3/2016 31/3/2017 31/3/20
“2-tF TR ZB-tf T R§ ZE-tf =ZT-RF
ZA=+-B =A=+—-H =ZA=t-H =ZA=t—-H =ZA=+-B =A=+-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEx TR THET TR TET
Guanwan Investments Limited BVI 20,000 20,000 6,459 6,155 26,459 26,155
(note(i)
BEREBRAR (M) RBERES
On 22 December 2014, the Company invested in the 3% (i) 5/\\\

unsecured convertible bonds issued by Guanwan Investments
Limited (“Guanwan”) at a face value of HK$20,000,000,
bearing coupon interest rate of 3% per annum. Guanwan is
an investment holding company which indirectly hold 100%
shares of its subsidiary, FIIEHFBREFRA A ("SFE").
© 4545 is principally engaging in designing, manufacturing
and retail of women's dress in PRC. Each convertible bond
due on 22 December 2017 are convertible into 24 fully paid
ordinary shares of Guanwan with a par value of USD1.00 each
at a conversion price of HK$833,333 per conversion share. The
Company can exercise the conversion at any time until the
maturity date.

Investments in convertible bonds represent investments in
convertible bonds issued by Guanwan. The investments in the
convertible bonds have debt components and embedded
derivatives components. The directors of the Company
designated the combined contracts as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and recognised at fair value. The
fair value of the combined contracts as at 31 March 2017 is
determined by reference to the valuation carried out by an
external independent valuer by using Discounted Cash Flow
Method and Binominal Option Pricing Model. The inputs are as
follows:

15 ME+—A=Z+=B &
RERNEERERR AR ([E
=1 ) ﬁZ3Tﬁﬁi#ﬁ—Hﬁﬂxfs\%'
EA#1E#@TE7%2OOOOOOO§E7TE ?ﬁ
BRMERGFIE Jré'f’EFﬁ,?E’ﬁx/‘

AR A - R A E T A "R
SREREERA T(fi%ﬁ%J)Z
100%H% 17 ° %ﬁﬁi%&‘?l?ﬁé%

KRR EERZE-BHOHRN
—‘tiﬂ—_ﬁ_-ﬁ—_ﬁx‘l,ﬁﬁz—ﬁﬁﬂx
25 AR (E BRI A AL (7 833,333
BLRBAEESREET.00ETZ
R IR R E B AR 24R% ° AN A R A R E|
HA A A B R 1T (R AR -

RER BB ESEREREBRET
Z A ES R AR RESR 2 E
BREEB D RRARNITET AR
Do ARBERHEEAHBNEEA
FEFAERRERE  MBEE I
BAFEER - SHEHNR T —t
FZA=t—BZAFETIEZ2E
%%ﬁi%ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%&
—IRA S EERAEAEE
ﬁ%%k%%@?r
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E2—F—+&=A=+—HILFE

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)
(b)  (continued)

Guanwan
Underlying share price HK$1,073,836
Number of share outstanding 24
Conversion price per share HK$833,333
Time to maturity 266 days
Interest rate per annum 3%
Discount rate 17.95%
Risk free rate 0.45%
Volatility 48.56%

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value
measurement are the underlying share price and expected
volatility. The fair value measurement is positively correlated to
the underlying share price and expected volatility.

As at 31 March 2017, it is estimated that with all other variables
held constant, an increase/decrease in the expected volatility
by 5% would have increased/decreased the carrying amount
of the investment by approximately HK$295,000/HK$2%0,000
(2016: HK$128,000/HK$134,000).

In addition, it is estimated that with all other variables held
constant, an increase/decrease in the underlying share prices
by 5% would have increased/decreased the carrying amount of
the investment by approximately HK$1,003,000/HK$1,230,000
(2016: HK$1,075,000/HK$770,000).
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R-ZB—+E=A=+—H8 HEME
H b BT 4 B N BB R T - T B 0 45 A0
SR A 5%E B A R E AL AN, R A 4
295,000/ 7T,/ 290,000/ 7T ( = Z — /N & ¢
128,000 7T 134,000/ 7T )

BESh - EHERT A R B IR R TR ER
T - 1ERARRE LT BS% G S EUR B AR E
B3 0" 2> #91,003,0007% 7T 1,230,000
BT (ZZ— 74 11,075,000/ 7T, 770,000
BT °



China Investment Development Limited o Bl & & AR A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19.

20.

e M HRRE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS

19. HMEWRIEA BERAMNRE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT
Interest receivable & Y F B 1,363 783
Prepayments T FRIB 979 778
Other receivables and deposits paid Hth eI FIE K B TR &

(note (a)) (Mt3E@)) 59,848 59,733
62,190 61,294

Note: B 5

(@)  The Group's other receivables and deposits paid were mainly
refundable deposits paid for potential investments in amount of
HK$59,000,000 as at 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$59,000,000).

BANK AND CASH BALANCES

@ R-Z—+tHF=A=+—H8 AEEZEM
ERFERBNZEEEERBEREZEN
A] 3R B #% £59,000,000/8 7T ( = Z — /N 4F
59,000,000/ 7T ) °

20. RITRBEER

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T T

Bank balances RIT&ET 13,772 38,726
Fixed deposits JEHATF R - 50,088
13,772 88,814

The effective interest rate of the deposits in 2017 range
from 0.001% to 0.45% (2016: 0.001% to 0.5%) per annum and
all of them have a maturity within three months from initial

inception.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with

creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

—EtEERZEBEFNEN T0.001%E
0.45% (—Z —7N4F : 0.001%=E0.5%) ' Fr B 1F
FTHERBOFERE BT =E R E-

RITEFREE B RITERF R LT BRRA
B-RTHEFEFANOCHYBENCEHRZER
RFRT
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E2—F—+&=A=+—HILFE

21. SHARE CAPITAL 21. KA
Number Amount
4= &5
HK$'000
AT
Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each FHREE 0.0018 T2 Bk
At 31 March 2016, 1 April 2016, RZB—RF=A=1+—"H =
and 31 March 2017 T-RNFEMNA—B K
—E—+F=A=+—H 100,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid ERTREE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each FHREE 0.0018 T2 E Bk
At 1 April 2015 R-_ZE—HFMA—H 8,342,514,870 8,343
Issue of shares (note (a)) TR D (B5E(a)) 570,000,000 570
Shares issued in acquisition of W B AR AN 15 B R BT AR 19
equity investments (note (b)) (FzED)) 24,242 424 24
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 RZE—RF=ZA=+—HK
—E—RFEMA—H 8,936,757,294 8,937
Cancellation of shares (note (c)) sE ety (B EE()) (114,900,000) (115)
At 31 March 2017 R—_ZE—+tF=HA=+—H 8,821,857,294 8,822
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #&==%—

21. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 25 September 2015, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with the placing agent pursuant to which the
placing agent conditionally agreed to place, to not less than
six places for up to 570,000,000 new shares of the Company
at a price of HK$0.148 per placing share. The placing was
completed on 10 October 2015 and none of the places became
a substantial shareholder after the completion of placing. The
aggregate nominal value of the placing shares issued of the
shares was HK$570,000.

On 3 June 2015, the Company entered into an agreement
with a vendor to acquire the sale shares by issuing 24,242,424
consideration shares at an issue price of HK$0.33 per share.
On 26 June 2015, issue of consideration shares has been
completed at the market quoted price of HK$0.26 per share
and the aggregate nominal value of the shares was HK$24,242.

On 20 May 2016, the Company repurchased a total of 8,420,000
shares at HK$0.113 per share and they were cancelled on 20
June 2016.

During July 2016, the Company repurchased a total of
106,480,000 shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange at
HK$0.096 per share and they were cancelled on 12 January
2017.

e M HRRE

tE=A=F+—HLFE

21. BA&(#)

B 5L :

(@)

RZZ-—AFNA-+HH AARHELEE
RIEBFI RS Bt REREE G
[ B & R A& k1701488 T 2 (B 18 - @)

TR N % A e A B 4 £k %570,000,0008%
ARFFEND -BEFRCR T —RF+

A+ Bk BEARARRKE ERTRIZ
RATEBRR - FETRERNDZEHER
570,000/ 7T °

RZE—RAFANA=B KNQRIEEF]
Y BRERETESROIIB TET
24,242,424 B IR 0 WL BE FF &5 IR 199 © B 1T
KREBROHER -_E—RHENA-+ B
MHREFIR0.26B LR D 2 BEE
24,2827 TT ©

RZE—ARNERA=-TH AQAFEER
O113%7‘5%@%%8420000&%% NI
—NFNAZ T B ERD -

_7

%

= /\ﬁz‘tﬂ 215 jEAE/;\%%?Q
1% 5 1%0.0965%8 7T 8 [/ & +£106,480,0008% A%
B AR =F—+F— A+ —AFHEZER
e

Annual Report &% 2017 127



e

~ China Investment Development Limited o HEIZEFMZBRAR
_

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDEED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E2—F—+&=A=+—HILFE

22. RESERVES 22. #1E
COMPANY b NNET|
Investment Share
Share  revaluation option Accumulated
premium reserve reserves losses Total
REE
15 E mE BRERE RiEE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THT
At 1 April 2015 R-ZE-HEMA—H 265,018 6,544 123,411 (222,751) 172,222
Loss for the year AERER = = - (19,989) (19,989)
Other comprehensive income Hib2EME
Change in fair value of available- AT HEHBKEEZ
for-sale financial assets NEEEE - 31,838 = = 31,838
Total comprehensive income AEERRNREHE
for the year - 31,838 - (19,989) 11,849
Issue of shares BIThA 83,790 - - - 83,790
Shares issued on acquisition of ~ YREEMR AR ERFE TR (D
equity investments 6,279 - - - 6,279
Shares issued under share option 1B ER TR
scheme - - - = =
Share issue expenses RIDEITRX (429) = = = (429)
At 31 March 2016 and RZE—RF
1 April 2016 ZRA=t—-HEk
“T-AFMA—H 354,658 38,382 123,411 (242,740) 273,711
Loss for the year rERER - - - (11,901) (11,901)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 EdE
Change in fair value of available-  AJHEHBEE 2
for-sale financial assets NEEZE - (2,371) - - (2,371)
Total comprehensive income AEERENRER
for the year - (2,371) - (11,901) (14,272)
Repurchase and cancellation BE Rk D
of shares (11,026) - - - (11,026)
At 31 March 2017 R-E—+F
—A=1+—"H 343,632 36,011 123,411 (254,641) 248,413
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

22. &% (@)
AT BHBEEARSARHREBEIEERBENZ

22. RESERVES (continued)

The following describes the nature and purpose of each

reserve within owners’ equity:

fiat

Reserve Description and purpose
(i Wk B

Share premium

P04 (B

Investment revaluation reserve

REEMRHE

Exchange reserve

PEE 3 i 18

Share option reserve

Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value.

REEA BB mE-

Gains/losses arising on recognising financial assets classified as available-for-

sale at fair value.

AR TERRDBAIHENBEEMEE 2 W HiE-

Gains/losses arising on retranslating the net assets of foreign operations into

presentation currency.

BREIERENREBIEREEFEMEE 2 W B

Cumulative expenses recognised on the granting of share options to the

employees over the vesting period.

FERE R PEBHERREER L BREER R
23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 23. BREE

ARRRBR-_FTFNFHANRBBRZRE
ERMBIRMERTE (T5H8]) T2 B8 W A LEE)
EXRAEIRER - REFTE ARREFEH
AAEERES (BRARRLEMBARES)
B Al R AN R B AU 2 B - B AR A
RE R R B ST B 1.00/8 T ©

The Company's share option scheme (the “Scheme”), was
adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 April 2009 for
the primary purpose of providing incentive to directors and
eligible employees. Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors
of the Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares of the Company. Consideration of
HK$1.00 is payable by each grantee upon acceptance of an

option.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z—F—+&=A=+—HILFE

23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 23. BRESTE (2

On 30 July 2013, the shareholders have approved the
refreshment of the 10% scheme mandate limit under the
Scheme of the Company in the annual general meeting. The
total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the company in issue at any point in time,
without prior approval from the Company's shareholders.
Option previously granted under the Schemes including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with the Scheme
or exercised options will not be counted for the purpose
of calculating the limit as “refreshed”. On 24 January 2014,
the number of shares in respect of which options had been
granted to eligible persons under the Scheme was 64,430,000,
representing 8.37% of the shares of the Company in issue at
that date. Options granted to independent non-executive
directors in excess of 0.1% of the Company's share capital and
with a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in
advance by the Company’s shareholders. On 16 September
2014, 81,100,000 share options were granted to subscribe for
a total of 81,100,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
in the share capital of the Company to eligible participants,
subject to acceptance of the eligible participants, under the
share option scheme adopted by the Company on 9 April
2009. Among the 81,100,000 Share Options granted, a total of
9,350,000 Share Options were granted to the Directors, chief
executive and a substantial shareholder.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

23. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 23. BRESTE (2
The following table discloses movements of the Company's TREBNEHZE-_ZE—+F=A=+—HIF
share options granted under the Scheme during the year ERE SRR R R ERE 2 &

ended 31 March 2017:

Number of share options

BREYR
Ratify
Exercise At Granted Exercised Lapsed previous At
price 1 April during during during lapsed 31 March
Category Date of grant Exercise period per share 2016 the year the year the year  share option 2017
RZB-KF ATBE R-B-tF
#3 R BH gid ] BROEE MA—-H FRRME ERfTR ERKR  XMERE =B=t-H
Executive director 24 January 2014 24 January 2014 to HK$0.1824* 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000
23 January 2019
WTES Z2-ME-A-tWNR ZZ-EF-A-tWAZE 0182438 T+
“E-hE-A=t=H
Non-executive director 24 January 2014 24 January 2014 to HKS0.1824* 2,600,000 - - - - 2,600,000
23 January 2019
FHTES “RQEE-A-tER  —ER-EF-A-TEAE  018M4ET
“E-NF-HA=T=H
Independent non-executive 24 January 2014 24 January 2014 to HK$0.1824* 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
directors 23 January 2019
BUFHTES ZT-NE-AZtWE ZEZ-ME-A-TEEE  0184E1*
“E-hE-A=t=H
Others 24 January 2014 24 January 2014 to HKS$0.1824* 54,330,000 - - - - 54,330,000
23 January 2019
At “RQEE-A-tER —ER-EF-A-tEAE  018M4ET
“E-NF-HA-T=H
Executive director 16 September 2014 16 September 2014 to HK$0.1560* 2,110,000 - - - - 2,110,000
15 September 2019
#TEF “E-MEARTAR ZE-EFAATRHE  01560ET*
Z-NENATER
Non-executive director 16 September 2014 16 September 2014 to HK$0.1560* 130,000 - - - - 130,000
15 September 2019
FHTES “RREARTAR ZE-EEARTARE  01%60ET
ZE-NFENATRR
Independent non-executive 16 September 2014 16 September 2014 to HK$0.1560* 5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000
directors 15 September 2019
BUFHTES “E-MEARTAR ZE-EFAATRHE  01560ET*
“Z-NENATER
Others 16 September 2014 16 September 2014 to HKS$0.1560% 73,860,000 - - - - 73,860,000
15 September 2019
At “EPEEARTAR ZE-EEARTARE  01%60ET
ZZ-NFENATRRE
Total 145,030,000 - - - - 145,030,000

3t
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #==%

23.

24.

— S

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

As at the date of grant, the exercise prices of the share options
were HK$1.824 and HK$1.56. The exercise prices were adjusted
to HK$0.1824 and HK$0.1560 following the share subdivision on
2 January 2015.

The number and weighted average exercise price of the
share options exercisable at the end of the reporting period
are 145,030,000 (2016: 145,030,000) and HK$0.1676 (2016:
HK$0.1676) respectively.

The weighted average remaining contractual life for share
options outstanding at the end of the reporting period is 1.2
years (2016: 2.2 years). The weighted average share price at
the date of exercise of options exercised during the year was
HKS$nil (2016: HK$nil).

The total number of securities available for issue under the
share option scheme as at 31 March 2017 was 1,450,300,000
shares (2016: 1,450,300,000 shares) which represented 16.44%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March
2017 (2016: 16.23%).

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE

Net asset value per share is calculated by dividing the net
assets included in the consolidated statement of financial
position of approximately HK$257,815,000 (2016: net assets of
HK$286,418,000) and the number of ordinary shares in issue as
at 31 March 2017, being 8,821,857,294 (2016: 8,936,757,294).
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23.

24.

E&E*QM@
R BB - BRI 2 1T (B R1.824%8 T
RI1G6E L - N —E—RAFEF— A=A
TR ARE 1T EFAEE0.18248 T &
0.15607 7T °

P SRS BA SR AT 17 (0 B AR A 2 BB R nde 15
17 1£ 8 5 Bl /5145,030,0001p ( =& — /N4 :
145,030,00017 ) %0.16767% Jt ( ZZ — /54 ¢
0.16767 L) °

R BAAR AR TE BB AR AE 2 INE R A 4
FEHBI2E(ZE—RE :1225F) FRETT
FRERENTERBZINEEEREAESTET

(—’g*/\i 5 g/%ﬂi) °

RZZT—tF=A=+—0 BEREFEIET]
3817 2 B H 4 BU51,450,300,0008% (=ZF—7X
4F : 1,450,300,0000% ) Az 17 * iHE R AR RN =
T—t+tF=A=+—H 2B ETKRE1644%
(ZE—RF:1623%) °

BREEFE
BREEFERSTAGEUBRARZEE
JF{E#)257,815,0008 7 (ZE—NF:EEF
6286,418,0008 L) R AR ZF -t F = A
=+ —HZBETEMAREE8,821,857,294%
(ZZF—754 :8,936,757,2940% ) 51 & -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

25. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 25. BEALRS
(@) Compensation of key management personnel, including () FEEBEAE (BEEENEMFEEE
the directors and other members of key management, AB)FRBEHT:
during the year is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —TRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Salaries, allowances and benefits Fo RUREYHNEG
in kind 3,787 2,921

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in

note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

EREEME 2 F$HBEREAH
EERRMIFEI3 o

During the year, the Group entered into the following b) FA KE BB N ET LA TR
transactions with related parties: VR
Name of related party Nature of transaction 2017 2016
BAEALER REMHE —E—+tF —ERF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHBT
China Everbright Securities (HK) Investment manager fee 720 720
Limited (“China Everbright”)
(note (i)
PR RES (BE)BRAF REKEER
(MR AR (KEEEG))
Note: BT -

(i) On 30 April 2015, the Company renewed the investment (i)

management agreement with China Everbright for a

period of three years effective from 1 May 2015. The

annual investment manager's fee payable to China
Everbright is HK$720,000 (2016: HK$720,000).

RZZ-—RFWHB=+H AARHE
PEXAEEREER RS B -F
—hFRA—BRER RE=F-
BERNTPBEEAZKRELEERR
720,000/ 7T ( =& —754F : 720,000/
JT) °
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26. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME 26. EARERE
The Group has participated in a defined contribution AREERBREIEAESASEAAMESE
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) REBREELHTHEEREHEAESEE
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance ([8E2ETE]) - BB e ez EERAEE
for all eligible employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the ZEENF HAGETEAZHZESRHA RE
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in ZatEl AEE (BEX) REESESBERRBES
funds under the control of trustee. Under the scheme, each of 2HE (ExRAaFERABEETENEA) 25%
the Group (the employer) and its employees makes monthly BAMBRBESEELHR B T —MFEX
contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of the employees’ A—BR EXRESESEZHEAEZESREH
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund 1,500/ 7T ( ZZF—75%F : 1,500 7T ) - big 2 4
Scheme Ordinance. The contributions from each of the TRV B R o I R U AR AR A SR SR AN 2 4
employer and employees are subject to a maximum e
contribution of HK$1,500 per month with effective from 1
June 2014 (2016: HK$1,500) and thereafter contributions are
voluntary. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contributions payable in the future years.
The total contributions charged to the consolidated income T AAR S W et &k 2 AR EE £9112,00078 7T
statement amounted to approximately HK$112,000 (2016: (ZZ—7"F : 4979,0008 L)  IEASEHRES
approximately HK$79,000), representing contributions payable —EtF=A=T—HILFEENRES
to the MPF Scheme by the Group in respect of the year ended Sz ke
31 March 2017.
27. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 27. REHERE
At the end of reporting period, the minimum lease payments RSN REBET A REECSEEMTEE
under non-cancellable operating leases for leased premise are F¥RENzxEHSKEWT
payable as follow:—
2017 2016
—E2—tF —ET—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Within one year —FR 603 2,269
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FEERF
(BEEEMSF) - -
603 2,269
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28. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 28. RZE—tF=A=1+—HERLQH
FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2017 B SRR =
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M RE THET FAETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment I ER L] 71 206
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZKRE 781 781
Available-for-sale financial assets A HETFEE 96,619 79,644
97,471 80,631
Current assets REEE
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFAEER
through profit or loss RIBZ B EE 68,314 38,235
Other receivables, deposits and Hh JEIRIE ~ e &
prepayments TR IR 61,956 61,080
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NGIE S| 19,792 16,223
Bank and cash balances RITRBEET 11,520 88,809
161,582 204,347
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accrued charges ~ H o fE 5018 K FEET & A 1,818 2,330
1,818 2,330
Net current assets RBEEZRE 159,764 202,017
Net assets EEFE 257,235 282,648
EQUITY =
Share capital [ 21 8,822 8,937
Reserves i 22 248,413 273,711
Total equity iR 257,235 282,648
On behalf of the board of directors REEZE
Chen Yin Chan Cheong Yee
FRJAL PRE&
Director Director
EZE EZE
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29. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 29. RERE D 2 BEERMEEEME
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair TRITM AN A E R EEM B EERBE
values of the Group's financial assets and liabilities as defined ZBREE KRR TFE
in note 4(f):
2017 2016
—E-tF ZEREF
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
AREE DNFE AREE NSRS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET FET TET
Financial assets B EE
Available-for-sale financial assets AHENKEE 109,094 109,904 93,475 93,475
Fair value through profit or loss: BATESAERR
BRI :
— Designated at initial recognition ~ — ¥R IETE 26,459 26,459 26,155 26,155
— Held for trading —R{EEE 41,855 41,855 12,080 12,080
Loans and receivables: BB TR -
— Other receivables, deposits — H f FE U RIE
B 61,211 61,211 60,516 60,516
~ Bank and cash balances -ROMREEF 13,772 13,772 88,814 88,814
Financial liabilities B EE
Financial liabilities measured at REHK AT EZ
amortised cost BBaE (1,822) (1,822) (2,389) (2,389)
The following table provides an analysis of financial TRINNRAFESRE D AR FESIEZ B
instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value BILADH: -
hierarchy:—
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
B HRAZEEXERZERTSME (REHE)
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and
E-R: B (BIER)kHEE (AREER)NEEXB B ATEERARE  MEFE —RABERE: &
Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
BE=M: WHERABETSHENEEXRBEZRARE (TR ZBARIER) -

136 Annual Report %% 2017



China Investment Development Limited o Bl & 2 A R A A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M HRREE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 #Z2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

29. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 29. RERHE P2 BEERMBEEMR
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY E(#)
(continued)
2017
—E—tF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— B B=4K #ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTHET FHET FHEx
Available-for-sale AHENKEE
financial assets
— Private equity securities —hERIERE 5 - - 109,094 109,094
Financial assets at fair value RAVEFAERR
through profit or loss BEZHEEE
— Listed equity securities — FiRER S 41,855 - - 41,855
— Investments in convertible — BN AR E
bonds % - - 26,459 26,459
41,855 - 135,553 177,408
2016
—T—REF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—K FE_M FE=M BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FETT FATT FETT
Available-for-sale JHENBEE
financial assets
— Private equity securities —ThE R 5 - - 93,475 93,475
Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFAEER
through profit or loss RBREZHBEE
- Listed equity securities — iR R S 12,080 - - 12,080
— Investments in convertible —RERABRRE
bonds % - - 26,155 26,155
12,080 - 119,630 131,710
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29. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 29. REHE D ZHMKEERUKEEM
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BE)
(continued)
Reconciliation for financial instruments carried at fair value

BEEATABEE AN ($=8) UATE
FIEM AT T A2 HEMT

based on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) are as

follows:

Financial assets
at fair value
through profit or
loss: Investments
in convertible

Available

for sale
financial assets:
Investments in
unlisted equity

bonds securities Total
BRAFEFAE AHE
BEREEZ MBEE:
MEEE . RE RERFE LS
RA R E S PR % @et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT F&T
At 1 April 2016 RZZ—XRFMA—H 26,155 93,475 119,630
Purchases fEE - 20,000 20,000
Total gain/(loss) Bl (B18)
—in profit or loss (note (a)) —iEz (MisEE)) 304 (1,988) (1,684)
— in other comprehensive —REA 2 E RS
income (note (b)) (KizE(D)) - (2,393) (2,393)
At 31 March 2017 RIT—t5F
=A=+—8H 26,459 109,094 135,553
Gain/(loss) recognised in profit FtASKE RS A
or loss relating to financial mREARTETARE
instruments held by the BRHER L
Group at the end Wz (B18)
of reporting date 304 (1,988) (1,684)
At 1 April 2015 R-Z—AFMA—H 21,832 61,541 83,373
Purchases BE = 18,303 18,303
Total gain/(loss) Uz (FR)
— in profit or loss (note (a)) —REE (@) 4,323 (17,670) (13,347)
— in other comprehensive — R E M 2 E
income (note (b)) (HizE(Db)) = 31,301 31,301
At 31 March 2016 RZZE—REF
=A=+—8 26,155 93,475 119,630
Gain/(loss) recognised in profit FEA KBRS A
or loss relating to financial EREMFRBIAR
instruments held by the BaPERz NS/
Group at the end (E8)
of reporting date 4,323 (17,670) (13,347)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 #E2=—F—+5=A=+—HItFE

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

(continued)
Notes:

(@  Included in the change in fair value of and net realised gain/
(loss) on disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss.

(b) Included in the other comprehensive income related to
investment revaluation.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include equity
investments, other receivables, other payables, borrowing and
amount due to directors. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies applied by the
Group to mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Interest rate risk

Except for the cash and cash equivalents which carry floating
interest rate, the Group has no other significant interest-
bearing assets with floating rates. The Group's income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes

in market interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis

Assuming the balance at 31 March 2017 was the amount
for the whole year, if the interest rate was 50 basis points
higher or lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2017 would
decrease or increase by HK$68,860 (2016: decrease or increase
by HK$444,070).

29.

30.

BERE D 2 BEERMBAER
L-4C )

P :

(@) HARATEHACEREEWHEE
ATEZ BB R ERATETAERR
BBy B AE Y BB (BE)F
R

b) FATHREEMzHEMEZEKE-

MHEREEBEREE

AEEET2MHTABEEAKRE HMEK
IR HAEN TR EERENEEFTIR %
EUMBTAZFBREBENERE -E@ZF
M T AR EASERAREZ SRR Z
BEREINIT - B EERZ TR R IATRERE
BRBEREREEERE-

2= [ B
BESRASSEMATHAEEIN A
B3 BRI KE B2 BAM AR
AEEWAREERSREABS DBIRT
BFIREE -

BBEDN

BRR_E—tF=A=+—H2Z2&B®RTIEF
[E 2 /58 - (WA= EFtsk FR&S0EES - mATa
HihBHERTE AAEEHEE T —+F=
R=+—RBIEFE 2 BB k8 68,860
BIT (ZZ— 755 A 3 444,070/ 7T )
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  30. BiiEEREBERBER (4)

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the Renminbi (“RMB”). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign

operations.

Sensitivity analysis
The following table shows the sensitivity analysis of a 5%
increase/decrease in RMB against the Hong Kong dollars, the

effect in the loss for the year is as follows:

SMNE LB

AEBEBEB AZKEZHEH 2 INE
R EREREBRKEARE ([ARE]) -
SMNERBR IR B BIIEB 2 AREERS O
REERBBARIREFE-

BREDN
TRITARE LB TIHE R ERERFE
BEEE ZBURED

Impact of RMB

ARBZEE
2017 2016
—E—tF T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THTT
Increase/decrease in loss for the year REZFEE MR 276 294

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
investments in convertible bonds, investments in PRC unlisted
equity securities and investments in Hong Kong listed
equity securities, which were classified as either available-
for-sale financial assets (note 17) or financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (note 18) on the consolidated
statement of financial position. To manage its price risk arising
from investments in financial assets, the Group diversified its

portfolio.
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  30. BiiEEREBERBER (4)

AND POLICIES (continued)

Equity price risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
(2016: 5%) change in the fair value of the financial assets with
all other variables held constant and based on their carrying
value amounts at the end of the reporting period. For the
available-for-sale investment, the impact is deemed to be on
the investment revaluation reserve and no account is given for
factors such as impairment, which might have impact on the

income statement.

RAERERR (&)

BRED
TRIAEMERMEBEFIZZBERT -
REMBEERBSPREHESEAE 2
FEFS%EE (ZF—AF :5%) 2HRE - 5t
AHERENS ARASHERAKEHKES
fEBEKEE ML EZREGNRESH
EFERERZAR-

Impact of investment

Impact of investments Impact of available in Hong Kong listed
in convertible bonds  for sale financial assets equity securities
ERLTRERS
TRRESRECYE THENKEEZYE REZY
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tF T ZB-tF T ZB-tF —TXF
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET T TET TET
Increase/decrease in loss KEEBEEM/ L
for the year 1,323 1,308 - - 2,093 604
Increase/decrease in HtngmtimEm/ mo
other equity reserve - - 5,455 4,674 - -
Credit risk FERE

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash
flows. With regard to 2016 and thereafter, the liquidity of
the Group is primarily dependent on its ability to maintain
adequate cash flow from operations and to raise funds
through issue and allotment of new shares to meet its debt

obligations as they fall due.

AEELESAEFEERR -

REBETER
REERDESRRT S ARE SIS #F
EREGRR/RM AT RIREFEYKRF A
RAKBEERKLERTES YWRERSRE
RB2H B - R T RFERERTE  A&EE
ZRBETETEIRRNEBEXRBRFRARE
MEBAREBBRITREENBOHERESUR
B2 H R B A BT A E 2 B
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the
end of reporting period is as follows:
Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
T
FLYiES

%

30.

MERREREBERBE#2)
RBESERE (&)
AEERBERR T BEEIHBERNAT
Total
Less than 1 year undiscounted Carrying
1year  to5years  cash flows amount
FHERRE
¥R —FEIF RERR FREE
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000

TAT TRT TAT TAT

As at 31 March 2017 RZE—tF=ZA=F+—H

Other payables and accrued charges HiENFIBRESER N/ATE 1,822 - 1,822 1,822

As at 31 March 2016 RZE—R"F=ZA=1+—H

Other payables and accrued charges HivRITIEREER N/AT 2,389 = 2,389 2,389
31. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICY 31. BEEEBBEE

The Group's objectives of managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,

issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as debts divided by total assets. Debts included other
payables and accrued charges, borrowing and amount due
to directors and total assets included non-current assets and
current assets as shown in the consolidated statement of

financial position.
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31. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICY (continued) 3. EEEEBER (&)

The gearing ratio at the end of reporting period was as REHR EEABHLEMT:
follows:
2017 2016
—E2—tF —E—RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FHAT
Debts &% 1,822 2,389
Total assets AERE 259,637 288,807
Gearing ratio BEABHE 0.70% 0.83%
32. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 32. #LEMBHRRE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for EFEERNZE—tF AT NBRUERE
issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2017. REF BB 5k -
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Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—-HLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E—+HF ZE-RF —ZT-HF —T-NF —T—=F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHET FET
RESULTS E
Revenue & 600 602 227 257 764
Loss before income tax expense FREF1SH R X BIE 1R (14,707) (23,974) (88,885) (89,215) (8,972
Income tax expense FriS BB X - - - - -
Loss for the year attributable to ZAN/NSIEFEDN
owners of the Company EIEARFEEEE (14,707) (23,974) (88,885) (89,215) (8,972)
Year ended 31 March
BZ=HA=+—-HILEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
ZE—+tF ZE-RE —T—HF —E-NF —E—=F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets EMENEE 115,361 100,464 48,346 21,578 6,802
Current assets mBEE 144,276 188,343 121,819 123,448 31,808
Current liabilities RBaE (1,822) (2,389) (1,098) (3,197) 4,519)
Non-current liabilities ErREHaE - - - - -
Total equity TS HEER 257,815 286,418 189,067 141,829 34,091
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